
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporaiy "Class B" Wine Retailers License 
and Special Event License to the Stoughton Chainber of Commerce for the Stoughton Wine W a1k 


Committee Action: Public Safety recommended approval 6-0 on August 23, 2023 


File Number: R-135-2023 I Date Introduced: September 12, 2023


WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Tempora1y "Class 
B" Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce for 
the Stoughton Wine Walk; and 


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on August 23,2023, to consider the tenns of 
the Temporaiy "Class B" Wine Retailers License and Special Event License and 
recommends approval, now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Cornmon Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporaiy "Class B" Wine Retailer's 
License and a Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City of Stoughton, 
attached hereto and incorporated as paii of this resolution, between the City of Stoughton and the 
Stoughton Chamber of Commerce. 


Council Action: D Adopted D Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action: D Accept D Veto


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action: D Override Vote 
















































































CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2023 adopted budget for closure of Fund 412 Equipment Replacement 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 08/08/2023 


Fiscal Impact:   $369,955 


File Number: R-128-2023 Date: 08/22/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the Common Council amended the 2023 adopted budget with R-013-2023 
on January 24, 2023 for employee market adjustments and utilized sustainable revenues of annual 
Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILOTs) from Stoughton Utilities as well as annual charges to 
surrounding towns for Fire Department services to pay for these employee market adjustments; 
and, 


WHEREAS, the 2023 adopted budget for Fund 412 Equipment Replacement did not 
include any expenditures as the budgeted activity for capital purchases was accounted for within 
Fund 410 Capital Outlay; and, 


WHEREAS, the resulting 2023 amended budget for Fund 412 Equipment Replacement 
had no revenues and no expenditures; and, 


WHEREAS, the audited financial statements showed Fund 412 Equipment Replacement 
had a fund balance of $369,955 at December 31, 2022; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the closure of Fund 412 
Equipment Replacement with the transfer of the remaining $369,954.80 cash to Fund 410 Capital 
Outlay; 


NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Finance/Comptroller is 
authorized to transfer $369,954.80 from Fund 412 Equipment Replacement to Fund 410 Capital 
Outlay; and 



















Page 1 of 3


Department Allocation Account Account


Description Number


Increase Decrease Increase Decrease


General Fund


Municipal Court Wages 100-51200-50120 9,830$      


Municipal Court FICA taxes 100-51200-50160 752$          


Municipal Court WRS - General 100-51200-50161 668$          


Municipal Court Intrafund transfer - wages 100-51200-49205 11,250$    


City Clerk Salaries 100-51420-50110 834$          


City Clerk Wages 100-51420-50120 3,300$      


City Clerk FICA taxes 100-51420-50160 316$          


City Clerk WRS - General 100-51420-50161 281$          


City Clerk Intrafund transfer - wages 100-51420-49205 4,731$      


Finance Salaries 100-51510-50110 14,222$    


Finance FICA taxes 100-51510-50160 1,088$      


Finance WRS - General 100-51510-50161 967$          


Finance Intrafund transfer - wages 100-51510-49205 16,277$    


Human Resources / Risk Mgmt Salaries 100-51550-50110 15,000$    


Human Resources / Risk Mgmt Wages 100-51550-50120 4,855$      


Human Resources / Risk Mgmt FICA taxes 100-51550-50160 1,519$      


Human Resources / Risk Mgmt WRS - General 100-51550-50161 1,350$      


Human Resources / Risk Mgmt Intrafund transfer - wages 100-51550-49205 22,724$    


Police Salaries 100-52100-50110 8,187$      


Police Wages 100-52100-50120 6,377$      


Police FICA taxes 100-52100-50160 1,114$      


Police WRS - Protective 100-52100-50162 1,922$      


Police Intrafund transfer - wages 100-52100-49205 17,600$    


Fire Salaries 100-52200-50110 13,987$    


Fire Wages 100-52200-50120 10,000$    


Fire FICA taxes 100-52200-50160 1,835$      


Fire WRS - Protective 100-52200-50162 3,166$      


Fire Intrafund transfer - wages 100-52200-49205 28,988$    


Public Works Streets Salaries 100-53300-50110 8,125$      


Public Works Streets Wages 100-53300-50120 27,616$    


Public Works Streets Seasonal 100-55300-50128 3,329$      


Public Works Streets FICA taxes 100-53300-50160 2,989$      


Public Works Streets WRS - General 100-53300-50161 2,430$      


Public Works Streets Intrafund transfer - wages 100-53300-49205 44,489$    


Public Works Parks Salaries 100-55200-50110 1,016$      


Public Works Parks Wages 100-55200-50120 7,897$      


Public Works Parks Seasonal 100-55200-50128 11,502$    


Public Works Parks FICA taxes 100-55200-50160 1,562$      


Public Works Parks WRS - General 100-55200-50161 606$          


Public Works Parks Intrafund transfer - wages 100-55200-49205 22,583$    


Senior Center Salaries 100-52200-50110 9,000$      


Senior Center Wages 100-52200-50120 16,390$    


Senior Center FICA taxes 100-52200-50160 1,942$      


Senior Center WRS - General 100-52200-50161 1,727$      


City of Stoughton


Positional Market Adjustments


January 24, 2023


Budget Ledger


Revenues Expenditures







Page 2 of 3


Department Allocation Account Account


Description Number


Increase Decrease Increase Decrease


City of Stoughton


Positional Market Adjustments


January 24, 2023


Budget Ledger


Revenues Expenditures


Senior Center Intrafund transfer - wages 100-52200-49205 29,059$    


Recreation Rec Programs Salaries 100-55300-50110 1,606$      


Recreation Rec Programs Wages 100-55300-50120 2,435$      


Recreation Rec Programs Wages - part time 100-55300-50127 6,325$      


Recreation Rec Programs FICA taxes 100-55300-50160 793$          


Recreation Rec Programs WRS - General 100-55300-50161 705$          


Recreation Rec Programs Intrafund transfer - wages 100-55300-49205 11,864$    


Recreation Youth Center Salaries 100-55400-50110 294$          


Recreation Youth Center FICA taxes 100-55400-50160 22$            


Recreation Youth Center WRS - General 100-55400-50161 20$            


Recreation Youth Center Intrafund transfer - wages 100-55400-49205 336$          


Planning Planning Salaries 100-56300-50110 3,297$      


Planning Planning Wages 100-56300-50120 1,359$      


Planning Planning FICA taxes 100-56300-50160 356$          


Planning Planning WRS - General 100-56300-50161 317$          


Planning Planning Intrafund transfer - wages 100-56300-49205 5,329$      


Planning Inspection Wages 100-52400-50120 10,000$    


Planning Inspection FICA taxes 100-52400-50160 765$          


Planning Inspection WRS - General 100-52400-50161 680$          


Planning Inspection Intrafund transfer - wages 100-52400-49205 11,445$    


Planning City Buildings Wages 100-53200-50120 9,315$      


Planning City Buildings FICA taxes 100-53200-50160 713$          


Planning City Buildings WRS - General 100-53200-50161 633$          


Planning City Buildings Intrafund transfer - wages 100-53200-49205 10,661$    


Info Technology Salaries 100-55500-50110 5,000$      


Info Technology Wages 100-55500-50120 11,803$    


Info Technology Wages - part time 100-55500-50127 370$          


Info Technology FICA taxes 100-55500-50160 1,314$      


Info Technology WRS - General 100-55500-50161 1,143$      


Info Technology Intrafund transfer - wages 100-55500-49205 19,630$    


General Revenues PILT - ELECTRIC UTILITY 100-88888-41310 59,369$    


General Revenues PILT - WATER UTILITY 100-88888-41312 59,368$    


General Revenues TOWN FIRE CHARGES 100-88888-47323 31,742$    


General Revenues TOWN FIRE CHARGES 100-88888-47323 114,714$  


General Revenues FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY 100-88888-49910 (248,737)$  


General Revenues RETENTION INITIATIVE 100-88888-50135 (248,737)$  


General Revenues Intrafund transfer - wages 100-88888-50925 256,966$  


General Revenues Transfer to other fund 100-88888-50930 8,227$      


Balance Sheet Primary checking 100-00000-11100


Fund totals


Library Fund


Library Primary checking 215-00000-11100


Library Wages 215-55110-50120 6,107$      


Library Wages - part time 215-55110-50127 1,150$      


Library FICA taxes 215-55110-50160 555$          


$273,422 $273,422







Page 3 of 3


Department Allocation Account Account


Description Number


Increase Decrease Increase Decrease


City of Stoughton


Positional Market Adjustments


January 24, 2023


Budget Ledger


Revenues Expenditures


Library WRS - General 215-55110-50161 415$          


Library Transfer In - General Fund 215-55110-49210 8,227$      


Fund totals


Storm Sewer Fund


Public Works Storm Sewer Salaries 224-53300-50110 3,125$      


Public Works Storm Sewer Wages 224-53300-50120 6,806$      


Public Works Storm Sewer Seasonal 224-53300-50128 1,196$      


Public Works Storm Sewer FICA taxes 224-53300-50160 851$          


Public Works Storm Sewer WRS - General 224-53300-50161 596$          


Public Works Storm Sewer Net position applied 224-53300-49950 12,574$    


Planning Storm Sewer Salaries 224-56300-50110 326$          


Planning Storm Sewer FICA taxes 224-56300-50160 25$            


Planning Storm Sewer WRS - General 224-56300-50161 22$            


Planning Storm Sewer Net position applied 224-56300-49950 373$          


Fund totals


Refuse Fund


Public Works Refuse Salaries 249-53620-50110 234$          


Public Works Refuse Wages 249-53620-50120 73$            


Public Works Refuse FICA taxes 249-53620-50160 23$            


Public Works Refuse WRS - General 249-53620-50161 41$            


Public Works Refuse Fund balance applied 249-53620-49930 371$          


Fund totals


Capital Outlay Fund


Capital Outlay Fund TOWN FIRE CHARGES 410-00000-47323 (114,714)$  


Capital Outlay Fund FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY 410-00000-49910 114,714$  


Fund totals


Equipment Replacement Fund


Equipment Replacement Fund PILT - ELECTRIC UTILITY 412-88888-41310 (59,369)$    


Equipment Replacement Fund PILT - WATER UTILITY 412-88888-41312 (59,368)$    


Equipment Replacement Fund TOWN FIRE CHARGES 412-52200-47323 (31,742)$    


Equipment Replacement Fund FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY 412-88888-49910 150,479$  


Fund totals


City wide totals


$371


$0 $0


$0 $0


$294,967 $294,967


$8,227 $8,227


$12,947 $12,947


$371











RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Police Department 2023-
2024 Union Contract and related budget amendment.  


The contract applies to sworn officers, detectives and agreed upon me-too clause for the non-union 
members holding the position of sergeant and lieutenant. 
 
Committee 
action: 


Fiscal impact: 


Personnel Committee recommended approval 5-0 on 12/06/2022 
Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 12/13/2022 


  TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
$101,463 


 
File Number: 


 
R-220-2022


 
Date Introduced:   December 13, 2022 


WHEREAS, the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management received a tentative 
agreement from the Stoughton Professional Police Association seeking ratification for the 2023-
2024 Union Contract; and, 


WHEREAS, the proposed union contract includes a nine percent (9%) wage increase; and, 


WHEREAS, the adopted budget included a wage increase of four percent (4%) for all 
employees in each department budget excluding Stoughton Utilities; and, 


WHEREAS, the additional five percent (5%) is calculated at $101,463 including wages, 
overtime, step increases, Social Security taxes and pension contributions; and, 


WHEREAS, the adopted budget set aside sufficient funds in General Revenues for 
Retention Incentives (A/C 100-88888-50135) in anticipation of the approval of the union contract; 
and, 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the proper city official(s) of the City of 
Stoughton are hereby authorized and directed to approve the Police Department 2023-2024 Union 
Contract; and, 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the adopted 2023 be amended as per the following 
table to increase the authorized budget for the City of Stoughton Police Department: 



























CITY OF STOUGHTON
2023 MARKET ADJUSTMENTS







A LITTLE HISTORY


• 2014 The Springsted Study was started


• Springsted Study was never implemented due to no funding mechanism


• Salaries fell behind as increases were not equivalent to COLA- (Cost Of Living Adjustments)
and market adjustments were not made.  


• Neighboring communities, Dane County and State jobs can be way more attractive as we 
have not made any effort to correct pay other than when someone leaves or has an offer.







TODAY’S ENVIRONMENT


EMPLOYEES LEAVE DUE TO COMPENSATION NOT BEING COMPETITIVE


NEW HIRES MAY MAKE MORE THAN THE INCUMBENT


NEW HIRES MAY MAKE MORE THAN EXISTING STAFF


MESSAGE THIS SENDS: 


WE DO NOT VALUE OUR EXISTING STAFF THAT ARE NOT PAID AT MARKET


UTILITIES COMPENSATION WAS REVIEWED AND CORRECTED IN 2022,  WILL THE CITY DO 
ANYTHING?  THE CITY STATES THEY NEVER HAVE ENOUGH FUNDING TO PROVIDE MARKET 
CORRECTIONS AND COLA. 


WHY SHOULD I STAY WORKING HERE WHEN THERE ARE OTHER JOBS THAT PAY AT MARKET?







OUR GREATEST ASSET- OUR STAFF


• EMPLOYEES RECEIVED 4% ON 1/1/2023- THE LARGEST INCREASE IN 9+ YEARS


• Note COLA  8.7% for 2023


• THIS IS A ONE TIME ADJUSTMENT TO MOVE THOSE NOT AT MARKET TO MARKET COMPENSATION


• TO RETAIN STAFF WE NEED TO HAVE A COMPETITIVE PACKAGE THAT INCLUDES COMPENSATION







RESOURCES USED 


Thi  Ph b  U k  A h  i  li d d  CC BY ND


• Dane County Cities and Villages Report


• Neo Gov


• Human Resources Contacted neighboring communities
• Middleton, Monona, Verona, Sun Prairie, Oregon, Cottage Grove, McFarland


• Positions that are Private and Public (IT, HR& RM, Finance, Planning etc.)







INFORMATION GATHERED FROM NEIGHBORING COMMUNITIES
HRS 2022Position DEPT Middleton Monona Verona Sun Prairie Oregon Cottage Grove McFarland Notes STGHT
FT 32.93 CITY MAYOR MAYOR Left Message 11/7


32 23 COURT CLERK COURT $44,6092.25- $57,992.02 $20.00 - $22.00 $53,020.19 $38,168.00 $27.15 $24,559.78 


FT 47 HUMAN RESOURCES & RISK MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR HR $84,681.67-$110,086.17 $40.63 $78,115.89 No R/M, Cert & 25+


FT 22.5 HUMAN RESOURCES & RISK MANAGEMENT GENERALIST HR $58,240.00 - $62,400.00 No prior experience or degree
30 18 HR ADMIN ASSISTANT HR $16.12 - $16.93


FT 21.24 DEPUTY CLERK CLERK $53,130.32 - $69,069.42 $41,600.00 - $43,680.00 $37,897.60 - $47,091.20 $42,889.60 - $45,198. $27.15 $45,094.40-$55,265.60 No prior Experience
FT 32.07 TREASURER FIN (finance director) (Finance director) (Finance Director)
FT 23.4 ACCOUNT SPECIALIST FIN $64,797.76- $84,237.09 $49,649.60 


FT 57.22 FINANCE DIRECTOR/COMPTROLLER FIN $78,496.00 - $97,522.00 $75,512.02 $56.19 $111,235.40 CTY & 25+
FT 28.95 BUILDING MAINTENANCE PLAN $18.50 - $21.50 $66.936.83 $70,000.00 - $75,000.00


FT 27.85 ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN PLAN $54,080.00 - $62,400.00


FT 33.17 BUILDING INSPECTOR PLAN $45.65 $76,000.00 - $82,000.00 25+ years and certs
FT 56.11 PLANNING DIRECTOR PLAN $95,148.32 - $123,692.82 $106,687.00 $90,000.00 - $100,000.00 $85,739.11 
FT 37.26 ASSISTANT PLANNER PLAN $59,697.23-$77,606.40 $50,000.00 - $65,000.00 $58,773.96 - $73,019.62 $60,000.00 - $68,000.00


20 18.45 PLANNING ADMIN ASSISTANT PLAN $38,168.00 


FT 25.75 FIRE EQUIPMENT SUPPORT TECHNICAIN FIRE N/A N/A


FT 33.75 DEP CHIEF/FIRE MARSH FIRE N/A $100,687.15 N/A N/A $67,808.00-$88,088.00 *Fire Inspector/ Public Education Specialist  $56,929.60- $69,763.20
FT 43.46 FIRE CHIEF FIRE $113,532 Private Dept * $119,873.69 $110,669 $98,500 $90,750.40- $117,873.60
FT 21.99 OPERATIONS SUPPORT SPECIALIST EMS $40,352.00 


FT 41.83 EMS DIRECTOR EMS $89,762.57 - $116,691.34 $90,428.90 $82,400 
FT 35.21 FLEET MAINTENANCE MANAGER PW $68,491.66 $ Certs
FT 26.27 MACHINE OPERATOR PW $50,122.95 - $65,159.83 $27.47-$28.80 $43,196.00 $23.77 - $32.09 $54,080 ($26 hour) CDL
FT 30.85 PARKS MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR PW $89,576.59 $56,929.60-$65,436.80 Prior Director & Certs
FT 29.55 MECHANIC PW $56,318.14 - $73,213.59 $32.86 (lead) $31.24 $29.18 $29.18 - $37.52 $47,798.40-$62,088.00 20+
FT 35.12 STREETS SUPERVISOR PW $63,279.07 - $82,262.79 $33.65 - $41.81 $43.43 $67,808.00-$88,088.00
FT 44.32 DIRECTOR PUBLIC WORKS DEPT PW $100,857.22 - $131,114.39 $119,873.69 $56.78 $56.78 $90,750.40- $117,873.60
FT 27.82 CITY FORESTER PW $53,130.32 - $69,069.42 $20.30 - $22.75 $70,000.74 - $86,967.57 $58,837.09 
FT 20.78 ADMINISTRATIVE ASST- Office Manager * PW $57,670.00 - $66,320.00 N/A N/A $18.62 - $25.14 (PW) N/A
FT 35.78 RECREATION DIRECTOR REC $86,714.00 - $112,728.00 $79,722.86 $78,115.89 $74,836.84 Cert,  4+ Dir
FT 40.46 YOUTH CENTER MANAGER REC $56,318.14 - $73,213.59


FT 28.36 RECREATION SUPERVISOR REC $59,697.23 - $77,606.40 $35,760.72 - $44,428.42 Program Exp.
30 22.17 CIRCULATION SUPERVISOR LIB $50,122.95 - $65,159.83 $42,650.00 $25.49 
FT 30.37 YOUTH SERVICES LIBRARIAN LIB $61,130.00-$79,469.00 $46,000.00 - $47,000.00 $84,506.21 $52,627.00 35.17
FT 23.88 CIRCULATION SUPERVISOR LIB $50,122.95 - $65,159.83 $42,650.00 $32.93 
24 22.42 YOUTH SERVICES ASSISTANT LIB $25.49 
25 18.19 LIBRARY CUSTODIAN LIB
FT 21.15 YOUTH/CIRCULATION SERVICES ASSISTANT LIB $17.47 $25.49 
22 22.84 ADULT SERVICES ASSISTANT LIB
20 17.98 CIRCULATION ASST-LIB LIB $14.90 $22.89 
FT 27.84 YOUTH SERVICES LIBRARIAN LIB $47,798.40-$62,088.00
FT 41.71 LIBRARY DIRECTOR LIB $80,109.00 - $99,525.00 $65,000.00 - $75,000.00 $94,951.18 $86,122.77 $43.43 $76,190.40-$98,966.40
24 20.83 ADULT SERVICES ASSISTANT LIB $15.09 


20 17.7 CIRCULATION ASST-LIB LIB $15.09 $20.03-$21.17
20 17.7 TECH SERVICES ASSISTANT LIB $14.90 


FT 24.74 CASE MANAGER SC $22.73 - $29.55 $40,227.20 - $49,982.40 $29.18-$30.85
FT 27.27 ASST DIRECTOR SC $32.93 
32 17.53 PROGRAM & VOLUTEER COORDINATOR SC $22.73 - $29.55 Hourly $15.00 - $18.00 $36,080.00 - $40,216.00 $29.18-$30.85
20 22.91 CASE MANAGER SC $23,639.20 - $30,732.00 $40,227.20 - $49,982.40 $29.18-$30.85
FT 23.82 CASE MANAGER SC $40,227.20 - $49,982.40 $29.18-$30.85
FT 37.22 SENIOR CTR DIRECTOR SC $71,100.36 - $92,430.47 $79,722.86 $42.92 25+
28 18.51 RECEPTIONIST SC $22,308.00 - $28,995.20 $22,308.00 - $28,995.20 $17.54 - $21.79 $20.03 S/b Admin Asst.
FT 22.03 NUTIRITION SITE MANAGER SC $14.89 - $15.29 $28.92 $28,288.40-$36,753.360
FT 26.82 COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER & IT/MEDIA $49,108.80 - $68,744.00


FT 50.48 IT/MEDIA SERVICES DIRECTOR IT $67,075.81 - $87,198.55 $100,000.00 - $110,000.00 Contract  out $101,567- $132,057 (Contract out) $50,668.80-$65,811.20
FT 38.46 SENIOR NETWORK ADMNISTRATOR IT $61,000.00 - $67,000.00 $69,519- $93,850
FT 40.29 OPERA HOUSE DIRECTOR OH


FT 24.74 BOX OFFICE MANAGER/VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR OH
FT 24.74 HOUSE MANAGER OH
FT 30 PD OFFICE MANAGER PD $56,318.14 - $73,213.59 $56,348.23 - $76,070.11 $45,094.40-$58,572.80
FT 24.31 FT DISPATCHER PD $21.96 - $28.55 $23.36 $20.62 - $27.83


*Admin Assistant/ Various Departments $20.30 - $22.75 $76,000.00 $50,019.10 $18.62 - $25.14 (PW) $47,500 


Fire Chief/ EMS Director $90,000.00 - $110,000.00


Cost of living increase 2.50%







PROCESS


• Began by evaluating each position and did not take into consideration how 
much money was available to ensure a fair process.  


• Current Compensation and PD’s were compared to the data provided


• Considered years of applicable experience


• Many employees have hybrid positions-comp’s reviewed


• Met with each Director to review the process and each position adjustment







END RESULTS


• After all of the market adjustments were made and discussions with the 
Department Heads we were around 25K over-Dave found the funding.


• 84 employees out of 94 were identified for a market adjustment


• Those that were not identified were more recent hires, had position 
changes/adjustment or by chance they were in range


• REMEMBER- this is about the POSITION, not the PERSON!







FUNDING- DIRECTOR EHLINGER     







QUESTIONS?







PLEASE SHOW YOUR SUPPORT FOR OUR 
EMPLOYEES BY PAYING THEM A FAIR WAGE 





		11 R-xxx-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for closure of Fund 412 Equipment Replacement.pdf

		R-13-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for city employee market adjustments.pdf

		Market adjust budget entries 2023.pdf

		12 R-13-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for city employee market adjustments.pdf

		12b. R-178-2022  Utilities Re-alignment

		12c. R-220-2022 Approve Police Department 2023-2024 Union Contract and amend 2023 budget

		12d. Market adjustment positional increases 01-24-2023

		12e Market Adjustments-City 2023 Final 01202023














CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2023 adopted budget for closure of Fund 411 Building Maintenance 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/22/2023 


Fiscal Impact:   $240,000 


File Number: R-129-2023 Date: 08/22/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has historically recorded building rental charges for 
the Senior Center Annex, One Community Bank, Stoughton Utilities and Emergency Medical 
Services within Fund 411 Building Maintenance; and 


WHEREAS, the above revenues were used to offset the cost of various Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) items and thus reducing the amount of debt to be issued for the various 
CIP items; and, 


WHEREAS, the life-to-date surplus for the Building Maintenance Fund was $397,207 as 
per the December 31, 2022 audited financial statements; and, 


WHEREAS, a portion of these revenues were included in the General Fund in the 2023 
adopted budget to adhere to statutory operational levy limits as opposed to the debt levy which is 
currently exempt from the levy limit statutes; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that all remaining revenues 
that would have normally been budgeted in Fund 411 Building Maintenance shall be included in 
the General Fund for budget year 2024 to adhere to statutory operational levy limits; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that all 2024 CIP items 
related to building maintenance shall be accounted for in Fund 410 Capital Outlay with funding 
provided by debt issues; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the closure of Fund 411 
Building Maintenance at December 31, 2023; and, 


WHEREAS, the current projected ending fund balance for Fund 411 Building 
Maintenance at December 31, 2023 will be $238,678; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Finance/Comptroller is 


TIME SENSITIVE ITEM











08/06/2023                                       BUDGET REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                                  


                                                   Calculations as of 12/31/2023                                                   


                                                                                                                                  


2022 2023 2023 2023 2024 Comment


ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED DEPT REQ


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 12/31/23 ACTIVITY BUDGET


ESTIMATED REVENUES


Dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS


411-53200-47450 DEPT CHG - UTILITY RENT 84,801    25,000      36,885               25,000        Current year accounting needs to be corrected.


411-53200-47455 DEPT CHG - EMS RENT 28,500    30,543      30,543               30,543        


411-53200-48110 INTEREST INCOME 5,884      2,500         10,882               18,000        Based upon seven months actual


411-53200-48220 RENTAL INCOME SR CENTER ANNEX 9,675      Annex rental income ended in 2022


411-53200-48221 ROOM RENTAL 240          220            218                     218              


411-53200-48222 RENT REV - ONE COMMUNITY BANK 25,997    34,750      20,127               30,191        2023 budget was overstated


411-53200-49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 146,500    No notes to be issued based upon fund balance


411-53200-49910 FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY 53,987      


  Totals for dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS 155,097  293,500    98,655               103,952      -                                                            


APPROPRIATIONS


Dept 52200 - FIRE DEPT


411-52200-50810-23027000 TRAINING ROOM - AV UPDATE 8,649                  8,649           


Dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS


411-53200-50128 ROOM OBSERVER 360          308                     308              


411-53200-50160 FICA TAXES 28            24                       24                


411-53200-50402 BACKROUND CHECKS 144          


411-53200-50430 PAINTING 40,000      40,000        


FOOTNOTE AMOUNTS: 40,000        


THIS $40,000 IS PLANNE FOR THE EXTERIOR OF THE SENIOR 


CENTER.  MARTIN IS WORKING TO HAVE THIS COMPLETED


IN 2023


411-53200-50830-21041000 BLDG IMP CITY HALL BOILER 23,721    


411-53200-50830-21045000 BLDG IMP EMS ROOFTOP UNIT #4 12,203    


411-53200-50830-22055000 BLDG IMP SENIOR CENTER BOILER 62,640    


411-53200-50830-22056000 BLDG IMP PSB RTU#4 ROOFTOP UNIT 17,400    


411-53200-50830-23073000 EMS/FOOD PANTRY - COOLING SYSTEM 20,000      


THIS WAS NOT NEEDED SINCE IT CHANGED THEIR LOCATION 


FOR SERVER EQUIP.   MOVE TO CITY HALL BASEMENT


$20,000 HAD BEEN BUDGETED, NOT $217,000 <<< The $217,000 amount has been corrected in BS&A.


411-53200-50830-23075000 LIBRARY - TUCKPOINTING 60,000      


$60,000 HAD BEEN BUDGETED.  PROPOSALS CAME IN MUCH 


HIGHER.  THEREFORE, WE PROPOSE TO ROLL THIS OVER


AND WE ARE REQUESTING $40,000 MORE IN 2024 CIP 


411-53200-50830-23076000 OPERA HOUSE - WINDOW ASSESSMENT 17,000      17,000        


$17,000 WAS BUDGETED.  MARTIN RECOMMENDS USING THIS


TO FIX OVAL WINDOWS AT TOP OF EMERGENCY EXIT


411-53200-50830-23078000 SENIOR CENTER ELECTRONIC DOOR CONTROLS 35,000      35,000        


$35,000 WAS BUDGETED.  MARTIN IS WORKING TO HAVE


THIS COMPLETED IN 2023


 The plan for the Mayor's 


recommended 2024 budget is to 


reflect these revenues in the 


General Fund. 


The room rental rate should be increased.  We have 


charged $218 and incurred $332 in wages/benefits.


 The plan for the Mayor's recommended 2024 budget is to reflect the various CIP items 


in Fund 410 Capital Outlay. 







08/06/2023                                       BUDGET REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                                  


                                                   Calculations as of 12/31/2023                                                   


                                                                                                                                  


2022 2023 2023 2023 2024 Comment


ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED DEPT REQ


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 12/31/23 ACTIVITY BUDGET


411-53200-50830-23079000 SENIOR CENTER ELEVATOR -COMPLETE UPGRADE 80,000      80,000        


$80,000 IS BUDGETED.  MARTIN IS WORKING TO HAVE THIS 


COMPLETED IN 2023


411-53200-50830-23080000 SENIOR CENTER BOILER EXPANSION TANK RPL 5,000         5,000           Fund balance 12/31/2022 $397,207.26


$5,000 IS BUDGETED,  MARTIN IS PLANNING TO HAVE THIS Projected deficit 2023 ($158,529.00)


COMPLETED IN 2023 Subtotal $238,678.26


411-53200-50840-23074000 LIBRARY - HVAC ENGINEERING 36,500      36,500        Projected year end transfer ($238,678.26)


THIS EFFORT INCLUDES DESIGN AND OVERSIGHT DURING Projected fund bal 12/31/2023 $0.00


CONSTRUCTION IN 2024


411-53200-50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 45,000    


TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 161,496  293,500    8,981                  262,481      -                                                            


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 411 (6,399)     -                 89,674               (158,529)     -                                                            







BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/06/2023 12:08 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


Period Ending 12/31/2023


                                     Fund 411 BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND


Balance
Current Year
Beg. BalanceDescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


98,318.74 10,225.77 PRIMARY CHECKING411-00000-11100
378,429.62 368,049.24 WISC INVESTMENT FUND411-00000-11302
10,156.38 18,953.78 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE411-00000-13010


486,904.74 397,228.79 Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


21.53 21.53 ACCRUED PAYROLL411-00000-21700


21.53 21.53 Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


397,207.26 397,207.26 FUND BALANCE ASSIGNED411-00000-39800


397,207.26 397,207.26 Total Fund Balance


397,207.26 Beginning Fund Balance


89,675.95 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
486,883.21 Ending Fund Balance
486,904.74 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance





		R-xxx-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for closure of Fund 411 Building Maintenance.pdf

		Fund 411 recommended budget 2024 08-06-2023.pdf

		Fund 411 recommended budget 2024 08-06-2023.pdf

		Fund 411 balance sheet.pdf












CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Repeal of city policy for Scheduled Building Maintenance Fund 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/22/2023 
TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


Fiscal Impact:   None 


File Number: R-130-2023 Date: 09/12/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton last amended the policy for scheduled building 
maintenance fund with resolution R-19-2019 dated February 12, 2019; and 


WHEREAS, the policy indicated that facility rental charges to both departments and 
outside entities should be recorded in Fund 411 Building Maintenance Fund to pay for various 
capital expenditures rather than issuing debt; and, 


WHEREAS, the 2022 adopted budget used 29.3% of the total budgeted revenues for 
facility rental charges in the General Fund to offset the property tax levy rather than for issuing 
debt; and, 


WHEREAS, the 2023 adopted budget used 69.0% of the total budgeted revenues for 
facility rental charges in the General Fund to offset the property tax levy rather than for issuing 
debt; and, 


WHEREAS, the policy indicated that the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Committee 
shall review the fund balance annually; and, 


WHEREAS, the fund balance has been averaging at 182.2% of budgeted expenditures 
from 2019 through 2023; and, 


WHEREAS, while the Building Maintenance Fund is not covered by the current fund 
balance policy, the average of 182.2% is well above the range for the General Fund of 20% to 25% 
in the current fund balance policy; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that the city policy for 
scheduled building maintenance fund should be repealed until such time as the Finance Committee 
develops a fund balance policy that includes all funds; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton’s Policy for 











08/01/2023                               REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                         
                                                       Month Ended: December                                                       


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 07/31/2023


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
100-52120-47450 DEPT CHG - UTILITY RENT 0.00 41,960.00 73,500.00 0.00 28,363.13 0.00
100-88888-47450 DEPT CHG - UTILITY RENT 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND: 0.00 41,960.00 123,500.00 0.00 28,363.13 0.00


0.0% 29.3% 69.0%


Fund 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND
411-00000-48200 RENT INCOME - UTILITY BUILDING 138,919.00 0.00 0.00 137,628.87 0.00 0.00
411-53200-47450 DEPT CHG - UTILITY RENT 0.00 72,627.00 25,000.00 0.00 84,801.05 36,885.37
411-53200-47455 DEPT CHG - EMS RENT 0.00 28,500.00 30,543.00 0.00 28,500.00 30,543.00
Fund 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND: 138,919.00 101,127.00 55,543.00 137,628.87 113,301.05 67,428.37


100.0% 70.7% 31.0%


TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS 138,919.00 143,087.00 179,043.00 137,628.87 141,664.18 67,428.37


AMENDED BUDGET Actual Amounts







08/01/2023                                       BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                                  
                                                       Month Ended: December                                                       


BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE
AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 08/01/2023


Fund 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND


Assets
411-00000-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING 506,202.92 62,664.02 (60,580.24) 10,225.77 95,794.07
411-00000-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 61,588.40 462,045.89 462,176.23 368,049.24 376,791.17
411-00000-13010 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 15.82 8,926.64 9,722.64 18,953.78 12,672.27
TOTAL ASSETS 567,807.14 533,636.55 411,318.63 397,228.79 485,257.51


Liabilities
411-00000-21100 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 93.75 79.86 7,713.07 0.00 0.00
411-00000-21700 ACCRUED PAYROLL 0.00 0.00 0.00 21.53 21.53
TOTAL LIABILITIES 93.75 79.86 7,713.07 21.53 21.53


Fund Equity
411-00000-39000 FUND BALANCE 540,448.89 567,713.39 533,556.69 0.00 0.00
411-00000-39800 FUND BALANCE ASSIGNED 0.00 0.00 0.00 403,605.56 397,207.26
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 540,448.89 567,713.39 533,556.69 403,605.56 397,207.26


Budgeted expenditures 281,500.00  299,600.00  369,414.00  161,496.00  293,500.00  
Fund balance as a percentage of budgeted expenditures 192.0% 189.5% 144.4% 249.9% 135.3%
Average fund balance as a percentage of budgeted expenditures 182.2%











POLICY FOR SCHEDULED BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND 


ADOPTED 3-27-2012X-X-2019 
Purpose: 


 


The purpose of this policy is to establish a key element of the financial stability of the City by 


creating a funding mechanism for the scheduled maintenance of existing City Buildings, 


Committing the funds to reserve, and by setting guidelines for the use o 


f the reserve fund. 


 


Funding Commitment: 


 


The Building Maintenance Fund Reserve is not available for expenditure for any other purpose 


than is laid out in this policy. By resolution of the Council and adoption of this policy, the 


Building Maintenance Fund will be classified as “Committed Fund Balance” in the City’s 


Financial Statements. 


 


The City shall commit its revenue received from the rental of City properties to the Building 


Maintenance Fund. The City currently receives rents from the Senior Center Annex, the Utilities 


building and the EMS building. The 2012 funding is $138,826.00 and is to be used as the base 


 annual figure for this fund shall be $140,000. Future additional rent amounts or other revenue 


sources will be considered by the Council to be used to stabilize the balance of this fund.Rental 


revenues in excess of the $140,000 shall be earmarked to the City Buildings Department (53200) to 


help fund annual maintenance and utilities costs. 


 


During the annual budget process, the City Council will review the balance in the Building 


Maintenance Fund to determine if the fund has accumulated an excessive amount. The Finance 


Committee/City Council will review the spending history of this fund to maintain its stability while 


ensuring that excessive funds can be used by the City. 


 


GASB 54 Fund balance Definition: 


 


Committed Fund Balance – amounts constrained so specific purposes by a government itself, 


using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot 


be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the highest-level action (Super 


Majority vote of the Council) to remove or change the constraint. 


 


Objective: 


 


This fund has been created to provide a funding source to maintain the current inventory of City 


owned buildings. New facilities, or remodeling projects above $5,000, are not funded through this 


fund and are subject to the CIP process for approval. Scheduled maintenance items associated 


with existing buildings are eligible expenses using this fund. Miscellaneous repair activities are 


covered in the operating budget and are not intended to use this fund. 


 


The Building Maintenance Fund is for use in the following buildings: 


 


City Hall, Fire Department, Public Safety Building, Senior Center, Depot, Library, EMS, Youth 


Center, Street Department Facility, Power House, Mandt Park Swimming Pond Facility, Band 







Shell, Park Shelters, McFarland State Bank Building and Park Buildings (excluding Mandt Park 


Buildings owned by the Fair Board). Playground equipment, tennis courts, park fencing, etc. is not 


intended to use this fund. 


 


 


 


Items to be included in Scheduled Building Maintenance Fund for all locations: 


 


Items generally scheduled and considered necessary to maintain the shell and integrity of existing 


buildings such as roofing, standard heating and cooling equipment, windows, doors, exterior 


painting, insulation, tuck pointing, garage doors, electric service equipment, standard floor 


coverings, standard lighting, and standard plumbing equipment. 


 


Some locations offer a “tenant” type relationship. These locations are responsible for certain 


items as outlined using sources other than this fund. 


 


These areas include: areas rented such as CLC, Experience Works and Senior Center Annex space, 


Library, Depot, Food Pantry, Youth Center, Opera House, and EMS. These areas are responsible 


for items such as: interior build outs, floor coverings, painting, special HVAC improvements, 


above standard lighting, shelving, furniture, and special electrical equipment. Lease agreements 


may supersede this policy. 


 


Things not intended to be funded using the Building Maintenance Fund: 


 


 Routine maintenance and associated agreements are not funded through this fund such as 


elevator service agreements, fire and smoke alarm agreements, snow removal expenses, lawn 


care maintenance expenses, etc. 


 Shelving, furniture, window coverings, etc. 


 Miscellaneous day to day repairs. 


 


Annual Review and Appropriation: 


 


The CIP committee will review scheduled Building Maintenance Projects and Fund Balance 


annually, starting in the month of June, and adjust the schedule as is necessary. The CIP 


committee will recommend approval of projects to be funded in compliance with the Building 


Maintenance Fund policy annually during the budget process. 


 


Emergency Appropriations: 


 


The City Planning Director shall be authorized to use funds from the Building Maintenance 


reserve to fund emergency repairs or maintenance for those expenses that are covered in this 
policy and are in compliance with the City’s Purchasing Policy for emergency expenses. All 


emergency appropriations shall be communicated at the first Finance Committee meeting following 


the emergency appropriation being made.  





		09 R-130-2023 Repeal of city policy for Scheduled Building Maintenance Fund.pdf

		R-xxx-2023 Repeal of city policy for scheduled building maintenance fund.pdf

		12a Hist rev exp.pdf

		12b Bal Sheet 2019-2023.pdf

		12c R-19-2019-Policy for Scheduled Building Maintenance Fund-signed.pdf

		15b-Policy for Scheduled Building Maintenance Fund.pdf














CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
An ordinance amending the zoning classification of Certified Survey Map (CSM) Lots 1, 2, 3 and 


Outlot 1 at the southeast corner of US Highway 51 and County Highway B, in the City of Stoughton, 
WI.  


Committee 
Action:    


Plan Commission recommends Council approval 7 – 0  


Fiscal Impact:        


File Number: O-26-2023 Date Introduced: 
 


First Reading: 8/22/2023 
Second Reading: 9/12/2023 


 
RECITALS 


 
1. Daniele St. Marie Thompson (the “Owner/Applicant”) has requested to change the zoning 


classification of the proposed parcels within Certified Survey Map (CSM) Lots 1, 2, 3 and Outlot 
1 at the southeast corner of US Highway 51 and County Highway B.     


 
2. The applicant proposes to rezone CSM Lot 1 to PO – Planned Office; Lot 2 and 3 to RH – Rural 


Holding and Outlot 1 to I – Institutional (Park and Open Space). 
 
3. On August 14, 2023, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing regarding the 


proposed zoning changes.  The public hearing was preceded by the publication of a class 2 
notice, and other notices as required by law.  


 
4. The Plan Commission found that the proposed zoning changes are consistent with the City of 


Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend the zoning changes be approved as presented.   
 
5. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning changes, the Plan Commission’s 


recommendation and finds that the proposed zoning changes are consistent with the City of 
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
ORDINANCE 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 


 
Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance 


as if set forth in full. 
   
Section 2. Subject to the conditions set forth in section 3 below, the zoning classification of 


the proposed parcels within Certified Survey Map (CSM) Lots 1, 2, 3 and Outlot 1 at the southeast 
corner of US Highway 51 and County Highway B are approved to be rezoned as follows: Lot 1 to PO – 
Planned Office; Lot 2 and 3 to RH – Rural Holding and Outlot 1 to I – Institutional (Park and Open 
Space). 


 
Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication pursuant to law after the 


Certified Survey Map has been approved by the City and recorded by the applicant. 
 
 


 
 


Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\STI Holdings Rezoning Ordinance.doc 
 
 
 
 
 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\081423\PC Info\STI Holdings Rezoning Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


  
(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:               July 29, 2023 
  
To:                  Plan Commission and Common Council                   
                        
From:              Rodney J. Scheel 
                        Director of Planning & Development 
  
                        Michael P. Stacey 
                        Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
  
Subject:           Agenda Item for the August 14, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and 


Common Council meetings of September 12 and 26, 2023 
  
  
Rezoning of Certified Survey Map, Lots 1, 2, 3 and Outlot 1 in the southeast corner of 
US Highway 51 and County Highway B. 
The applicant is seeking to rezone the proposed parcels as follows:  Lot 1 to PO - 
Planned Office; Lots 2 and 3 to RH - Rural Holding and Outlot 1 to I – Institutional 
(Park and Open Space).  Lot 1 is planned for Stoughton Trailers new headquarters. 
 
The CSM will be on the September 11, 2023 agenda. 
  
The application materials and ordinance are provided.  A public hearing and 
recommendation to the Common Council is necessary. 
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





N87°04'22"E 1436.61'


S0
2°


29
'1


7"
E


20
0.


39
'


N87°37'13"E 979.10' N
00


°1
0'


13
"W


20
9.


82
'


N87°52'37"E 664.48'


S0
0°


09
'5


5"
E


13
30


.4
4'


S0
0°


10
'1


2"
E


13
25


.6
3'


S88°32'05"W 664.54'


S87°41'55"W 1975.52'C1


L2L3N
00


°3
0'


54
"E


27
3.


48
'


N
05


°1
2'


16
"E


15
0.


33
'


N
01


°2
8'


19
"W


40
0.


50
'


N
01


°2
3'


25
"E


15
00


.0
0'


N
02


°0
7'


16
"W


21
3.


52
'


L1


L5


C2
S87°08'39"W


196.56'


S0
2°


29
'1


7"
E


20
0.


39
'


N
01


°2
8'


19
"W


40
0.


50
'


S68°41'38"E


225.45'


S37°01'38"E
216.28'S68°27'34"E


331.69'S68°27'34"E


331.69' S65°56'27"E


484.03'


N50°02'49"W
267.38'


N3
3°


10
'39


"E


13
3.


38
' N72°15'28"E156.08'S52°35'47"E


129.20'S87°38'15"E
142.92'S70°29'54"E


92.48'


S65°56'27"E484.03'


S35°12'16"E


176.56'


N
01


°2
8'


19
"W


40
0.


50
'


N
05


°1
2'


16
"E


15
0.


33
'


S51°02'05"W
207.73'


S29°22'15"E


137.42'


S68°10'31"W78.50'N04°35'28"W
68.08'


N50°02'49"W


267.38'


N
00


°3
0'


29
"W


17
3.


46
'


S0
0°


10
'1


2"
E


13
25


.6
3'


N00°12'46"W
11.83'


N87°41'55"E
74.50'


N00°30'54"E
54.30'


L4


N29°22'15"W
158.31'


S88°07'12"W
888.07'


S88°07'12"W
888.07'


S52°52'27"W
263.29'


N37°17'23"W
90.00'


D
AN


E 
C


O
U


N
TY


 C
ER


TI
FI


ED
 S


U
R


VE
Y 


M
AP


 #


O
W


N
ER


:
PR


O
JE


C
T 


N
O


.


SU
R


VE
YO


R
:


D
R


AW
N


 B
Y:


 


FI
LE


 N
O


.


SH
EE


T 
N


O
.


21
90


20
00


BL
T


SR
S


21
90


20
00


1 
O


F 
15


ST
I H


O
LD


IN
G


S,
 IN


C
.


41
6 


AC
AD


EM
Y 


ST
.


ST
O


U
G


H
TO


N
, W


I 5
35


89


PLOT DATE:Monday, July 10, 2023 4:15:09 PM,  G:\21\21902\21902000\CADD\Survey\CSM\21902000_51 Rutland NE_CSM.dwg


PA
R


T 
O


F 
TH


E 
W


 1
/2


 O
F 


TH
E 


SW
 1


/4
, P


AR
T 


O
F 


TH
E 


E 
1/


2 
O


F
TH


E 
SW


 1
/4


, T
H


E 
W


 1
/2


 O
F 


TH
E 


W
 1


/2
 O


F 
TH


E 
SE


 1
/4


 O
F


SE
C


TI
O


N
 3


1,
 T


O
W


N
 6


 N
O


R
TH


, R
AN


G
E 


11
 E


AS
T,


 C
IT


Y 
O


F
ST


O
U


G
H


TO
N


, D
AN


E 
C


O
U


N
TY


, W
IS


C
O


N
SI


N


©
 M


SA
 P


ro
fe


ss
io


na
l S


er
vi


ce
s, 


In
c.


EN
GI


NE
ER


IN
G 


| 
AR


CH
IT


EC
TU


RE
 |


 S
UR


VE
YI


NG
FU


ND
IN


G 
| 


PL
AN


NI
NG


 |
 E


NV
IR


O
NM


EN
TA


L


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


 w
w


w
.m


sa
-p


s.c
om


(6
08


) 2
42


-7
77


9
17


02
 P


an
kr


at
z S


t M
ad


iso
n,


 W
I 5


37
04


N


EW


S


WI
MADISON


BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY ARE BASED ON
THE WISCONSIN COORDINATE REFERENCE


SYSTEM (WISCRS), DANE COUNTY (2011).
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF


SECTION 31 BEARS N87°41'55"W.


0 200 400


SHEET 2 SHEET 3 SHEET 4


SHEET 5 SHEET 6 SHEET 7


SHEET 8 SHEET 9 SHEET 10


SHEET 11
SHEET 12 SHEET 13


W1/2-SW1/4


E1/2-SW1/4


W1/2 -W1/2
-SE1/4


EA
ST


 L
IN


E
W


 1
/2


 - 
SW


 1
/4


EA
ST


 L
IN


E
E 


1/
2 


- S
W


 1
/4


EA
ST


 L
IN


E
W


 1
/2


 - 
W


 1
/2


 - 
SE


 1
/4


SOUTH LINE
SW 1/4, SEC 31


NOTE: SEE DETAIL
SHEETS FOR LINE
AND CURVE TABLES


667,791 SF
15.330 AC


LOT 1
OUTLOT 1


1,135,305 SF
26.063 AC


471,244 SF
10.818 ACLOT 2


5,449,631 SF
125.106 AC


LOT 3


15'


CTH "B"


U
SH


 5
1


GREENBRIAR DR


KINGS LYNN RD


78.5'


110'


90'


100'


OAKRIDGE
WAY


BLACK
OAK DR


KINGS LYNN RD


44.49'


NORTH LINE, SW 1/4, SEC 31


NORTH LINE
SE 1/4, SEC 31


STREET A


TO
TA


L 
AC


R
EA


G
E:


 1
82


.4
29


 A
C


.


120'


WIDTH
VARIES


WIDTH
VARIES


110'


66'


93'69'


66'


66'


90'


GREENBRIAR
DRIVE


NYGAARD
STREET


SE CORNER
SECTION 31


FOUND BRASS
CAP IN BOX


W1/4 - CENTER N87°04'22"E, 2468.72'


N
O


R
TH


 L
IN


E,
 S


W
 1


/4
, S


EC
 3


1
N


E 
C


O
R


 - 
W


 1
/4


 N
01


°2
2'


47
"W


, 2
62


5.
22


'


WETLAND
(TYP.)


PROPERTY LINE
AS DESCRIBED
IN WARRANTY
DEED 4334073


PLANNED OFFICE


RURAL 
HOLDING


RURAL  HOLDING


INSTITUTIONAL
P/OS







Area for rezoning


CURRENT   ZONING







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, August 
14, 2023, at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard to consider a 
proposed rezoning of Certified Survey Map, Lots 1, 2, 3 and Outlot 1 at the southeast 
corner of US Hwy 51 and County Hwy B.  Lot 1 is proposed to be rezoned to PO - 
Planned Office; Lot 2 and Lot 3 are proposed to be rezoned to RH – Rural Holding and 
Outlot 1 is proposed to be rezoned to I – Institutional (Park/Open Space).   
 
Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
    321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 
 
Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via 
Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84804793954?pwd=ZDMzSlFWUndSS1NjNkNhYUM5akJJZz09 
 
Phone in: +1 312 626 6799  Meeting ID: 848 0479 3954 Passcode:  586242 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice, please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
at 608-646-0421.   
 
     
Published July 27 and August 3, 2023 Hub  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning  -  STI HQ Notice.doc 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84804793954?pwd=ZDMzSlFWUndSS1NjNkNhYUM5akJJZz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Zoning Map Amendment APP.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Amendment of the Official Zoning Map
(Requirements per Section 78-903 attached)


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application to
amend the Official Zoning Map and by the City to process said application. Parts II and III are to be
used by the Applicant to submit a complete application; Parts I - IV are to be used by the City when
processing said application.


I. Record of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


Application fee of $________ received by Zoning Administrator Date: _______________


II Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicant Use


Prior to submitting the final complete application as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall
submit an initial draft application and materials for staff review, followed by one revised application packet based
upon staff review and comments.


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: ______________


 (a) A copy of the Current Zoning Map of the subject property and vicinity:
 Showing all lands for which the zoning is proposed to be amended.


 Map and all its parts are clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Electronic map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 ft.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (c) Written justification for the proposed text amendment
 Indicating reasons why the Applicant believes the proposed map amendment is in


harmony with the recommendations of the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan,
particularly as evidenced by compliance with the standards set out in Section 78-
903(4)(c)1.-3.


III Justification of the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment for Applicant Use


1. How does the proposed Official Zoning Map amendment further the purposes of the Zoning
Ordinance as outlined in Section 78-005 (and, for floodplains or wetlands, the applicable rules and
regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA))?







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Zoning Map Amendment APP.doc


2. Which of the following has arisen that are not properly addressed in the current Official Zoning Map?
(Please provide explanation in space below if necessary)


a) The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity with the
Comprehensive Plan.


b) A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map. (That is, an area is developing in a
manner and purpose different from that for which it is mapped.) NOTE: If this reason is cited,
it must be demonstrated that the discussed inconsistency between actual land use and designated
zoning is not intended, as the City may intend to stop an undesirable land use pattern from
spreading.


c) Factors have changed, (such as the availability of new data, the presence of new roads or other
infrastructure, additional development, annexation, or other zoning changes), making the subject
property more appropriate for a different zoning district.


d) Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an Amendment to the
Official Zoning Map.


3. How does the proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintain the desired consistency of
land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the surroundings of the subject
property?







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Zoning Map Amendment APP.doc


IV. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


Receipt of (8.5” by 11” text and 11” by 17” graphic electronic Date: ______________
copies of final application packet by Zoning Administrator


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: ______________


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice published on __________ and __________ Date: ______________







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  081423.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 14, 2023 at 6:00 pm 
Hybrid Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher; Phil Caravello, Vice-Chair;  Tom 
Majewski; Dorann Bradford; Tom Robinson and Al Farrow 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey 
Guests: Justin Hanson; Dustin Oler; Dean Slaby; Dan Hanson; Jodi Hanson; Daniele St. Marie 
Thompson; Gary Becker; Katrina Becker; Kirt Andersen; Konner Kearney; Connor Nett; Ingrid 
McMasters; Attorney Matt Dregne; Tricia Suess; Tyler Denig; Alan Kirchoff; Robert Wahlin; 
Eric Quam; David Ferris; Amber Cedarstrom; Glenn Prescott and Joe Herr. 
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Roll call and verification of quorum.  Mayor Swadley verified a quorum is present. 


 
3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law.  Mayor Swadley certified 


compliance with open meetings law. 
 


4. Plan Commission meeting minutes of July 10, 2023.   
Motion by Caravello to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 


5. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated the Common Council approved R-119, R-120 and R-121 on July 25th and O-
23 and O-25 on August 8th. 
 


6. Status of Current Developments.   
Stacey introduced the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials.  There 
were no questions. 
 


7. TID No. 6 – Project Plan & Territory Amendment. 
David Ferris gave an overview of the project plan including next steps in the process.  A 
public hearing is planned for the September 11th Plan Commission meeting. 
 


8. Rezoning of Certified Survey Map, Lots 1, 2, 3 and Outlot 1 in the southeast 
corner of US Highway 51 and County Highway B. 
Mayor Swadley introduced the rezoning request.  Stacey noted the CSM will be reviewed at 
the September 11th Plan Commission meeting. 
 
Daniele St. Marie Thompson stated they will be prepared to discuss further next month when 
the CSM is on the agenda. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
8/14/23 
Page 2 of 5 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes  081423.docx 


 


 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Bradford to recommend Common Council approval of the rezoning as presented, 
2nd by Schumacher.   Motion carried unanimously. 
 


9. Planned Development – General Development Plan for 211 S. Water Street. 
Mayor Swadley introduced the rezoning request.  Stacey explained the intent for the Planned 
Development zoning is to provide flexibility from the Central Business zoning code 
requirement to first have commercial space in the first 24 feet of building depth on the main 
floor prior to having residential apartments as an accessory use. 
 
Justin Hanson explained the intent of the requested zoning change. 
 
Dustin Oler explained where they are at in discussions related to leasing parking spaces from 
the City. 
 
Mayor Swadley gave an overview of parking options and discussions he has had with City 
Staff and the applicants. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
Ingrid McMasters spoke with concern about parking and density but is in favor of fixing up 
the building and affordable housing. 
 
Amber Cedarstrom spoke in support of the project. 
 
Joe Herr spoke in support of the project and explained how the project would move forward. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Caravello asked for details about providing bike racks.  Dustin Oler stated he had no details 
for the bike racks yet and will discuss later.  Mayor Swadley stated this will be covered when 
the specific implementation plan is reviewed. 
 
Bradford questioned if the City can legally lease parking stalls to some people but not others.  
Mayor Swadley stated he had planned on focusing leasing spaces at the north and south 
municipal lots.  Attorney Dregne stated legally the City can lease stalls on a case by case 
basis, though people could point to whether that is fair or appropriate. 
 
Motion by Robinson to recommend Common Council approval of the Planned Development 
- General Development Plan as presented, 2nd Farrow.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



mstacey

Highlight





		11 O-26-2023 STI Holdings Rezoning Ordinance

		11a STI Holdings Rezoning

		STI Holdings_Rezone_App_2023_07_10

		STI Holdings_Rezone_Submittal_2023_07_10



		ADP55BE.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, August 14, 2023 at 6:00 pm Hybrid Meeting





		Applicant Name: Daniele St. Marie Thompson

		Applicant Address: 214 S.Forrest Street, Ste 8, Stoughton, WI

		Applicant Phone and Email: 608-467-8760, dst@stmarie-law.com

		Property Owner Name if different than applicant: STI Holdings, Inc.

		Property Owner Phone: 608-873-2500

		Subject Property Address: Parcel #s: 281/0611313- 90022, 95802, 92102, 81022, 82102, 85022

		Date: 7/11/23

		Application fee of: 475

		Date_2: 

		Date_3: 7/10/2023

		Management Agency FEMA 1: This CSM allows for construction of Stoughton Trailers' headquarters, as well as dedicating land for stormwater management and preservation of existing wetland.

		1: 

		Official Zoning Map 1: Factors have changed since the last land division of this land, and this CSM is the first phase in the development plan for Stoughton Trailers based on a recent Comp Plan amendment that aligns with this development.

		property 1: This land division extends the collector street from USH 51 to existing roadways, providing greater mobility in this area of the City.  It will also allow for growing the local economy and providing jobs in the NW corner of the City.  A future plat will further divide the land that can be served by the planned infrastructure shown in this CSM.

		Class 2 legal notice published on: 7/27/23

		and: 8/3/23

		Date_4: 7/11/23

		Date_5: 8/2/23

		Date_6: 8/9/23

		Date_7: 7/21/23

		Date_8: 








 


Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82136181790?pwd=dFI5dWpvWmhmRFQ0bXdNV0lQVmlFZz09 
Meeting ID: 821 3618 1790 Passcode: 001882 
One tap mobile +13092053325,,82136181790#,,,,*001882# US  


In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 
              321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 Live streamed:  
The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981.  The 
WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and iOS. Note: Effective 
September 1, 2023, the TDS channel number for WSTO-TV is 981. 
 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher 
and Christina Wozniak Scanlon 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF THE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to 
attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@cityofstoughton.com 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
1.  Roll Call  
 
2.  Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
 
3.  Public Comment Period: 


A. If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form and submit 
it by 6:30 p.m. on September 12, 2023 http://speak.cityofstoughton.com. 
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
 A. Green and Resilient Retrofit Program (GRRP) grant application – Stoughton Housing Authority 
 B.  Accrued sick leave credit for retiring employees policy / surviving spouse policy 
      C.  Power House Building memo 08-23-2023 
      D.  Debt issue 2023A presale spreadsheets 09-06-2023 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at 
the time and location given below. 







 
5.  Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – August 22, 2023 
       B.  Committee Minutes and Reports:  Public Works (7/20/23); Food Pantry (8/16/23), CIP (8/18/23); 
Finance (8/8/23); Personnel (03-06-23; 05-03-23; 06-05-23) 
       C.  R-134-2023 Approve outdoor consumption permit – Working Title LLC dba Water St Tavern 
       D.  R-135-2023 Approve temporary class B wine retailers license and special event license for Stoughton 
Wine Walk 
        
OLD BUSINESS     


6.  Reconsideration of R-128-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for closure of Fund 412 Equipment 
Replacement (Resolution previous approved 12-0 on August 22, 2023 by the Common Council.) 
 
7.  Reconsideration of R-129-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for closure of Fund 411 Building Maintenance 
(Resolution previously approved 12-0 on August 22, 2023 by the Common Council) 
 
8.  R-130-2023 Repeal of city policy for Scheduled Building Maintenance Fund (Resolution postponed by the 
City Council on August 22, 2023) 
 
9.  O-26-2023 Amend zoning classification of Certified Survey Map (CSM) Lots 1,2,3 and Outlot 1 at the 
southeast corner of US Hwy 51 and County Hwy B (Plan Commission recommended approval 7-0)  
          SECOND READING 
 
10.  O-27-2023 Planned development – general development plan for 211 S Water St ((Plan Commission 
recommended approval 7-0)       SECOND READING 
 
11.  O-28-2023 Amend zoning classification at 2605 Cromwell Court and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson St 
(Plan Commission recommended approval 7-0)     SECOND READING 
                                                                                            


NEW BUSINESS 


12.  R-136-2023 Conditional use request for 2605 Cromwell Court to allow multiple principal buildings 
on a lot and more than 12 residential units per building.  (Plan Commission recommends approval 5 – 2 
on August 14, 2023) 


13. R-137-2023 Certified survey map for property at 2605 Cromwell Court (Lot 27) and the rear portion 
of 2500 Jackson Street (Lot 15), Kettle Park West.  (Tabled by the Common Council on June 13, 
2023.  Plan Commission recommends approval 4 – 2 on May 8, 2023) 


14.  R-138-2023 Conditionally approving a Certified Survey Map of certain lands owned by STI 
Holdings, Inc. (Plan Commission considering on September 11, 2023) TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
 


ADJOURNMENT 


 







Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82136181790?pwd=dFI5dWpvWmhmRFQ0bXdNV0lQVmlFZz09 
 
Meeting ID: 821 3618 1790 
Passcode: 001882 
One tap mobile 
+13092053325,,82136181790#,,,,*001882# US  
+13126266799,,82136181790#,,,,*001882# US (Chicago) 
Dial by your location 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
 
Meeting ID: 821 3618 1790 
Passcode: 001882 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/ki0Lr1sAJ 








1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Dave Ehlinger
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 2:35 PM
To: 'paul@sunnysidedevelopment.org'; Cindy McGlynn
Cc: 'Susanne Broihahn'; 'Kathy Olson'; 'Menachem Rapoport'; 'Emery Krumrei'
Subject: RE: Buyer Assignment and GRRP Consent


All, 
 
I have just forwarded the documents to our a orney for his review. 
 
Dave 
 


From: paul@sunnysidedevelopment.org <paul@sunnysidedevelopment.org>  
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 1:32 PM 
To: Cindy McGlynn <CMcGlynn@cityofstoughton.com> 
Cc: Dave Ehlinger <DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com>; 'Susanne Broihahn' <sue@bmcmadison.com>; 'Kathy Olson' 
<kathy@bmcmadison.com>; 'Menachem Rapoport' <mrapoport@crowncourtproperties.com>; 'Emery Krumrei' 
<ekrumrei@crowncourtproperties.com> 
Subject: FW: Buyer Assignment and GRRP Consent 
Importance: High 
 


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 


Cindy, 
 
It was good talking to you just now.  Please find a ached two documents that we would be grateful if you signed 
today.  They are both straigh orward and previously discussed/agreed to, but not fully executed.  The first is the 
Housing Authority’s consent for us to apply to the Green and Resilient Retrofit Program (GRRP) offered by HUD and 
made possible by the Infla on Reduc on Act.  Please see: h ps://www.hud.gov/grrp .  If successful, this will provide the 
project with an addi onal $5.52M for solar panels, geothermal, increased insula on, etc and will make the property 
100% carbon zero.  This applica on is due tonight at 11:59 EST.  The second is exercising our right (per clause 11) to 
assign the Buyer from Crown Court Property to a new en ty called ‘Greenspire LIHTC Apartments, LLC’.  We need this 
assignment to occur now, because the GRRP applica on requires that the applicant name matches the purchase 
contract. 
 
Thanks again for your help in ge ng this through quickly. 
 
Best, 
-Paul 
p.s. on the assignment, you really only need to print/sign the first 2 pages. 
 


From: ONeill, Mark <moneill@gklaw.com>  
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 1:13 PM 
To: Emery Krumrei <ekrumrei@crowncourtproperties.com> 
Cc: Menachem Rapoport <mrapoport@crowncourtproperties.com>; paul@sunnysidedevelopment.org 
Subject: RE: Buyer Assignment and GRRP Consent 







2


 
Menachem, 
 
Per our conversa on, please see the a ached.  
 
Mark 
 
Mark O'Neill | Attorney  
414.287.9233 direct | moneill@gklaw.com 


 
This is a transmission from the law firm of Godfrey & Kahn, S.C. and may contain information which is privileged, confidential, and protected by the attorney-client or 
attorney work product privileges. If you are not the addressee, note that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is prohibited. If 
you have received this transmission in error, please destroy it and notify us immediately at (414) 273-3500. 












3333339


CITY OF STOUGHTON
POLICY & PROCEDURE MANUAL


& RELATED FORMS


Asadopted by the Stoughton City Council
Tuesday, August 24, 2021







44


Policy Procedure Manual


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employees Policy


1.0 Purpose


2.0 Policy Details
All Full-Time employees who retire from City service and apply (within 60 days of last day
paid) for retirement annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement System, which annuity must
exceed $10.00 per month, shall have their sick leave credits, up to 130 days (1040 hours) and
any amount of sick leave credits in excess of 1250 hours at 50% for Sworn Police (at the time
of their retirement) shall be converted to a monetary value (hours of credit times normal
hourly rate of pay received immediately prior to retirement) which must be deposited by the
City into the City’s designated financial institution for the Health Reimbursement Account.
The funds shall be made available toward the payment of health insurance premiums for
the employee and their dependents.


There is no other payment of accrued but unused sick leave other than retirement.


3.0 Procedures


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms


5.0 Council Approved
August 24, 2021







45


Policy Procedure Manual


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Surviving Spouse Policy


1.0 Purpose
This document outlines the handling of an employee’s sick time balance in the event the
employee thatpasses while actively employed.


2.0 Policy Details
In the event that an employee dies during the course of their employment and is survived
by a spouse, their accrued sick leave credits, up to 130 days, at the time of death, shall be
converted toa monetary value (hours of credit times normal hourly rate of pay received
immediately prior to death) which shall be available toward the payment of health
insurance premiums for the survivingspouse. In the event that the retired employee shall
precede their spouse in death and there remains at that time to their credit a balance,
such balance shall be used to purchase health insurance for the surviving spouse so long
as the spouse is alive and there remains a balance in the fund, or, should the spouse not
elect to continue their coverage, paid monthly to the spouse in an amount equal to the
applicable monthly health insurance premium.


3.0 Procedures


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms


5.0 Council Approved
August 24. 2021





		R-130-2021-Approval of Work Rules and Policies Procedures  Forms Manuals Personnel 2021 8-10-2021-signed.pdf

		Policy Procedure Manual 12-1-21.pdf






1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Dave Ehlinger
Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 9:52 AM
To: City Council
Cc: Tim Swadley; Candee Christen; Tammy Nimmo; Rodney J. Scheel; Rick A. Manthe
Subject: Power House Building memo 08-23-2023
Attachments: Power House Building memo 08-23-2023.pdf


Common Council members, 
 
Please see the attached memo for additional information regarding the Power House Building roof and tuckpointing. 
 
As requested, the attached memo will be included on the September 12, 2023 Common Council agenda for discussion 
and possible action regarding R-128-2023, R-129-2023 and R-130-123. 
 
Dave 
 
David P. Ehlinger, CPA 
Director of Finance/Comptroller 
City of Stoughton 
207 S. Forrest St. 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
Desk (608) 873-6691 
City Hall (608) 873-6677 
Fax (608) 873-5519 
DEhlinger@cityofstoughton.com ≪< Please note new email address 
www.cityofstoughton.com             ≪< Please note new website URL 
 
 















08/23/2023                               REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                       


                                                       Month Ended: December                                                     


Project Code Description Proj Type Start Date End Date
14088000 POWER PLANT ROOF REPAIR Project 01/31/2014 12/31/2014


16026000 TRASH RACKS FOR POWERHOUSE HEADRACE Project


18010000 POWER HOUSE BLDG-REPAIR & REROOF Project


18011000 POWER HOUSE BLDG - TUCK POINT Project


Adopted Amended  Actual Adopted Amended  Actual Adopted Amended  Actual
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION Budget  Budget Activity Budget  Budget Activity Budget  Budget Activity


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND


410-57100-50820-16026000 STREET - TRASH RACKS FOR POWERHOUSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


410-57140-50820-14088000 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND:


TOTAL REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 (3,000.00) 0.00 (10,000.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Fund 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND


411-53200-50820-18010000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-POWER HOUSE REROOF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18011000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-POWER HOUSE TUCK PT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00


Fund 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND:


TOTAL REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 115,000.00 115,000.00 0.00


NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (115,000.00) (115,000.00) 0.00


TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 115,000.00 115,000.00 0.00


NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 (3,000.00) 0.00 (10,000.00) 0.00 (115,000.00) (115,000.00) 0.00


Budget Year 2014 Budget Year 2016 Budget Year 2018







08/23/2023                               REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                         


                                                       Month Ended: December                                                       


BALANCE


2018 2018 AS OF


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET ORIG BUDGET 12/31/2018


Fund 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND


Dept 00000 - BALANCE SHEET


Account Type: Revenue


411-00000-48110 INTEREST 333.00 333.00 1,129.65


411-00000-48200 RENT INCOME - UTILITY BUILDING 130,000.00 130,000.00 125,548.06


411-00000-48200-41900000 RENT INCOME - UTILITY BUILDING 0.00 0.00 55.00


411-00000-48220 RENTAL INCOME-SR CENTER ANNEX 14,000.00 14,000.00 30,375.00


411-00000-48221 RENTAL INCOME - ROOM USE 300.00 300.00 392.50


Total Revenue: 144,633.00 144,633.00 157,500.21


Net - Dept 00000 - BALANCE SHEET 144,633.00 144,633.00 157,500.21


Dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS


Account Type: Expenditure


411-53200-50128 ROOM OBSERVER 300.00 300.00 1,747.50


411-53200-50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 23.00 23.00 133.70


411-53200-50820-18003000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-CONDENSING UNIT 12,000.00 12,000.00 6,372.26


411-53200-50820-18004000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE - EMS ROOFTOP #1 24,000.00 24,000.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18005000 BUIDLING MAINTENANCE-DOUBLE HINGE SYSTEM 3,500.00 3,500.00 3,400.00


411-53200-50820-18006000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-FIRE TRNG RM CARPET 12,500.00 12,500.00 5,397.50


411-53200-50820-18007000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-NORTH SERVICE DOOR 5,500.00 5,500.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18008000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-LIBRARY DOOR 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18009000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-LIBRARY CARPET 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18010000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-POWER HOUSE REROOF 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18011000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-POWER HOUSE TUCK PT 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18012000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-GARAGE HEATING 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18013000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-PSB CARPET-1ST FLR 10,000.00 10,000.00 8,192.75


411-53200-50820-18014000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-PSB CARPET 2ND FLR 20,000.00 20,000.00 8,192.75


411-53200-50820-18015000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-PSB CEILING 2ND FLR 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18016000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-SR CTR HVAC ZONE 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00


411-53200-50820-18017000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE-PW PARK BENCHES 6,250.00 6,250.00 8,003.50


411-53200-50820-18018000 BULDING MAINTENANCE-YC CARPET MAIN FLR 10,000.00 10,000.00 4,542.00


Total Expenditure: 255,573.00 255,573.00 45,981.96


Net - Dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS (255,573.00) (255,573.00) (45,981.96)


Fund 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND:


TOTAL REVENUES 144,633.00 144,633.00 157,500.21


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 255,573.00 255,573.00 45,981.96


NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (110,940.00) (110,940.00) 111,518.25







Description Department Dept Head Amount Spent to Date Balance Remaining  Balance to Carryover  Retainage 12/31/19  Spent 2020  Remaining Status
Install VAV Unit EMS Rodney 2,500$               -$                             2,500$                                    2,500$                                      -$                        2,500$                  Will Carry Over $2,500
Power House Bldg - Repair & Reroof Planning Rodney 50,000$             -$                             50,000$                                  50,000$                                    -$                        50,000$                Will Carry Over $50,000
Power House Bldg - Tuck Point Planning Rodney 65,000$             -$                             65,000$                                  65,000$                                    -$                        65,000$                Will Carry Over $65,000
Parking Deck Repair Senior Center Rodney 150,000$           -$                             150,000$                                150,000$                                  -$                        150,000$              Will Carry Over $150,000
Class A & B Uniforms Fire Josh 5,600$               121$                            5,479$                                    5,479$                                      4,909$                    570$                     Will Carry Over $4,288
Personal Protective Equipment Fire Josh 35,000$             7,703$                         27,297$                                  27,297$                                    25,819$                  1,478$                  Will Carry Over $1,725
Skid Pak for ATV Fire Josh 10,000$             -$                             10,000$                                  10,000$                                    -$                        10,000$                Will Carry Over $8,681
2018 Street Reconstruction+Reprogrammed $ 400 Brett/Rodney 1,835,673$        1,658,505$                  177,168$                                33,065$                                    28,065$                                -$                        5,000$                  Will Carry Over $5,000 - Plus Retainage
2018 Street Reconstruction+Reprogrammed $ Storm Water Brett/Rodney 270,158$           381,114$                     (110,956)$                               13,775$                                    8,775$                                  -$                        5,000$                  Will Carry Over $5,000 - Plus Retainage
2019 - Street Construction 400 Brett/Rodney 2,312,508$        2,099,998$                  212,510$                                212,510$                                  79,801$                                63,755$                  68,955$                Will Carry Over $30,000 - Plus Retainage
City Hall - Retiling Main Floor Opera House Bill 18,500$             -$                             18,500$                                  18,500$                                    18,500$                Will Carry Over $18,500
2018 Public Works Facility Public Works Brett/Rodney 8,450,000$        8,309,106$                  140,894$                                55,000$                                    -$                                      22,479$                  32,521$                Will Carry Over $12,000
Bjoin Park Tennis Court Resurfacing Recreation Dan 35,000$             6,873$                         28,127$                                  28,127$                                    19,034$                  9,093$                  Will Carry Over $9,093
2019 - Subdivision & Platting/Zoning Code Update Planning Rodney 40,000$             -$                             40,000$                                  40,000$                                    2,422$                    37,578$                Will Carry Over $37,648
2019 - Recreation - Nordic Ridge Park Furnishings Recreation Dan 7,700$               3,215$                         4,485$                                    4,485$                                      4,485$                  Will Carry Over $4,428
2019 - Street Construction Storm Water Rodney 388,465$           362,763$                     25,702$                                  25,702$                                    12,037$                                2,769$                    10,896$                Will Carry Over $5,000 - Plus Retainage
2019 - Glacier Moraine TIF 6 Rodney 2,600,000$        1,396,748$                  1,203,252$                             1,203,252$                               52,801$                                742,572$                407,879$              Will Carry Over $395,000 - Plus Retainge


Pre-2020 CIP Carryovers


S:\Finance\CIP - Project Tracking\2020 Tracking Materials\Pre-2020 Carryovers 12.31.20 - Complete


Pre-2020 Carryovers 12.31.20 - Complete







ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CATEGORY/TYPE
32000 CAPITAL NET POSITION Fund Equity - Investment In Capital Assets


34503 DESIGNATED FOR FOOD PANTRY Fund Equity - Assigned


34502 DESIGNATED FOR HOLIDAY FUND Fund Equity - Assigned


34501 DESIGNATED-LIABILITY INS  LOSS Fund Equity - Assigned


34504 DESIG-SUBSEQUENT YRS BUDGET Fund Equity - Assigned


39803 FUND BAL ASSIGN ANTENNA BLDG Fund Equity - Assigned


39805 FUND BAL ASSIGN DENTAL Fund Equity - Assigned


39801 FUND BAL ASSIGN LAND PURCHASES Fund Equity - Assigned


39802 FUND BAL ASSIGN PARK IMPROVEMENTS Fund Equity - Unassigned


39820 FUND BAL ASSIGN POLICE Fund Equity - Assigned


39830 FUND BAL ASSIGN REC PROGRAMS Fund Equity - Assigned


39804 FUND BAL ASSIGN RETIREMENT Fund Equity - Assigned


39840 FUND BAL ASSIGN SENIOR CENTER Fund Equity - Assigned


39701 FUND BAL COMMIT TAX LEVY Fund Equity - Committed


39603 FUND BAL REST ANNEX RENOVATIONS Fund Equity - Restricted


39601 FUND BAL REST BLDG SINKING Fund Equity - Restricted


39602 FUND BAL REST DONATIONS Fund Equity - Restricted


39610 FUND BAL REST LAND PURCHASES Fund Equity - Restricted


39611 FUND BAL REST PARK IMPROVEMENTS Fund Equity - Restricted


39620 FUND BAL REST POLICE Fund Equity - Restricted


39630 FUND BAL REST REC PROGRAMS Fund Equity - Restricted


39604 FUND BAL REST REVOLVING LOAN PROGRAM Fund Equity - Restricted


39640 FUND BAL REST SENIOR CENTER Fund Equity - Restricted


39000 FUND BALANCE Fund Equity - Assigned


39009 FUND BALANCE - ANNEX RENOVATIONS Fund Equity - Assigned


39800 FUND BALANCE ASSIGNED Fund Equity - Assigned


39700 FUND BALANCE COMMITTED Fund Equity - Committed


34500 FUND BALANCE NONSPENDABLE Fund Equity - Unassigned


39500 FUND BALANCE NONSPENDABLE Fund Equity - Nonspendable


39600 FUND BALANCE RESTRICTED Fund Equity - Restricted


34210 FUND BALANCE- TORNADO DONATION Fund Equity - Assigned


39900 FUND BALANCE UNASSIGNED Fund Equity - Unassigned


34000 FUND BALANCE-DESIGNATED Fund Equity - Assigned


39011 FUND BALANCE-PARK IMPROV DON Fund Equity - Assigned


39010 FUND BALANCE-RESERVE Fund Equity - Assigned


39504 NONSPENDABLE - CVMIC EQUITY Fund Equity - Nonspendable


39503 NONSPENDABLE - DELINQUENT TAXES Fund Equity - Nonspendable


39502 NONSPENDABLE - FUND ADVANCES Fund Equity - Nonspendable


39501 NONSPENDABLE - PREPAID ASSETS Fund Equity - Nonspendable


34033 PREVENTATIVE MAINT-DEGRADATION FEES Fund Equity - Assigned


39050 RESERVE FOR CLG Fund Equity - Assigned


34017 RESERVE FOR CURB & GUTTER Fund Equity - Assigned


35820 RESERVE FOR CVMIC EQUITY Fund Equity - Assigned


34016 RESERVE FOR FIRE DEBT Fund Equity - Assigned


35800 RESERVE FOR LONG TERM ADVANCE Fund Equity - Assigned


39051 RESERVE FOR MINI GRANTS Fund Equity - Assigned


35810 RESERVE FOR NON CURRENT ASSETS Fund Equity - Assigned


34018 RESERVE FOR SIDEWALK Fund Equity - Assigned


34028 RESERVED - BAILEY SISTER CEMETERY Fund Equity - Unassigned


34032 RESERVED - CONTINGENCY SPENDING Fund Equity - Assigned


34116 RESERVED - EMT TRAINING BANK Fund Equity - Assigned


34745 RESERVED - HUTCHINS SCHOLARSHIP FUND Fund Equity - Assigned


34030 RESERVED - NATIONAL NIGHT OUT Fund Equity - Assigned


34021 RESERVED - POLICE FEDERAL FUNDS Fund Equity - Assigned







ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CATEGORY/TYPE
34020 RESERVED - POOL SINKING FUND Fund Equity - Assigned


34744 RESERVED - VENDING MACHINE - PARKS Fund Equity - Assigned


34700 RESERVED BUILDING FUND Fund Equity - Assigned


34006 RESERVED--- CLG GRANT Fund Equity - Assigned


35410 RESERVED FOR ENCUMBERANCES Fund Equity - Assigned


37001 RESERVED FOR POLICE DISPATCH REMODEL Fund Equity - Assigned


34022 RESERVED FUND: DEVELOPER -TREE PLANTINGS Fund Equity - Assigned


34011 RESERVED- SENIOR GIFT FUND Fund Equity - Assigned


34031 RESERVED --TAXI GRANT Fund Equity - Assigned


34008 RESERVED YOUTH GIFT FUND Fund Equity - Assigned


34003 RESERVED...CABLE OPERATIONS Fund Equity - Assigned


34023 RESERVED:   PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL Fund Equity - Assigned


34742 RESERVED:  DONATIONS Fund Equity - Assigned


34118 RESERVED:  DOWN PAYMENT ASSISTANCE Fund Equity - Assigned


34800 RESERVED:  FUNDRAISING ACCT Fund Equity - Assigned


34740 RESERVED:  LAND Fund Equity - Assigned


34119 RESERVED:  REMDEDIATION ASSISTANCE Fund Equity - Assigned


34117 RESERVED:  STOUGHTON HOUSING AUTHORITY Fund Equity - Assigned


34101 RESERVED: BRYANT FOUNDATION Fund Equity - Assigned


34102 RESERVED: CPR TRAINING Fund Equity - Assigned


34103 RESERVED: CUMMINS FOUNDATION Fund Equity - Assigned


34004 RESERVED: F.A.P. Fund Equity - Assigned


34104 RESERVED: F.A.P. Fund Equity - Assigned


34741 RESERVED: IMPROVEMENTS Fund Equity - Assigned


34105 RESERVED: INTERST INCOME Fund Equity - Assigned


34107 RESERVED: MISC DONATIONS Fund Equity - Assigned


34113 RESERVED: OJA GRANTS Fund Equity - Assigned


34115 RESERVED: ROTARY PARK LIGHTS Fund Equity - Assigned


34108 RESERVED: SHILLELAGH FOUNDAT Fund Equity - Assigned


34109 RESERVED: SP: LOCKER ROOM Fund Equity - Assigned


34111 RESERVED: SP: TROPHY CASE Fund Equity - Assigned


34110 RESERVED: SP-RAD-57 Fund Equity - Assigned


34012 RESERVED: STATE AIDS Fund Equity - Assigned


34112 RESERVED: STATE AIDS Fund Equity - Assigned


34114 RESERVED: STOUGHTON COMM FOUND Fund Equity - Assigned


34106 RESERVED: SUNSHINE FUND Fund Equity - Assigned


34743 RESERVED:911 ANTENNA BLDG - RACETRACK Fund Equity - Assigned


34010 RESERVED-BRYANT GRANT Fund Equity - Assigned


34029 RESERVED---BUDDY BAGS Fund Equity - Assigned


34024 RESERVED---BUDDY BENCHES Fund Equity - Assigned


34015 RESERVED-DNR RIVER PLAN Fund Equity - Assigned


34013 RESERVED-ECON.DEVELOPMENT Fund Equity - Assigned


34001 RESERVED-HEGGESTAD MEMORIAL FD Fund Equity - Assigned


34026 RESERVED---HOOPS WITH HERO'S Fund Equity - Assigned


34005 RESERVED---LANDMARK COMMISSION Fund Equity - Assigned


34027 RESERVED--PUBLIC WORKS AWARD Fund Equity - Assigned


34100 RESERVED-REMODEL/IMPROVEMENTS Fund Equity - Assigned


34002 RESERVED---SAFETY CAMP Fund Equity - Assigned


34014 RESERVED-SENIOR ENDOWMENTS Fund Equity - Assigned


34009 RESERVED-SENIOR WOOD SHOP Fund Equity - Assigned


34019 RESERVED---SHOP WITH A COP Fund Equity - Assigned


34007 RESERVED---YOUTH CENTER Fund Equity - Assigned


34025 RESERVE-REVOLVING LOAN FUND Fund Equity - Assigned


32115 REST NET POS - BRYANT DONATIONS Fund Equity - Unassigned







ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CATEGORY/TYPE
32120 REST NET POS - FED ASSIST PROGRAM Fund Equity - Restricted


32110 REST NET POS - NET PENSION ASSET Fund Equity - Restricted


32100 RESTRICTED NET POSTION Fund Equity - Restricted


33100 Retained Earnings-Reserved Fund Equity - Unassigned


32310 UNREST NET POS - ACTUARIAL Fund Equity - Unassigned


32335 UNREST NET POS - CPR TRAINING Fund Equity - Unassigned


32330 UNREST NET POS - EQUIP SINKING Fund Equity - Unassigned


32320 UNREST NET POS - TRUCK SINKING Fund Equity - Unassigned


32300 UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION Fund Equity - Unassigned





		Power House Building memo email 08-23-2023.pdf

		Power House Building memo 08-23-2023.pdf

		20230823094627345.pdf

		Project code activity 2014-2018.pdf

		Fund 411 revenue expenditure report 12-31-2018.pdf

		Pre-2020 Carryovers 12.31.20 - Complete.pdf

		Fund balance accounts 08-23-2023.pdf








Financing Plan / Issue Sizing
GO Bonds


2023
Projects


Street Improvement Projects 3,737,887
Fire Department Equipment 452,630
Library Projects 50,000
Park Projects 957,725
Stormwater Utility 966,470


Project Needs 6,164,712


Issuance Expenses
Municipal Advisor 38,500
Bond Counsel 25,000
Rating 17,500
Paying Agent 850
Underwriter Fees 78,813


Total Funds Needed 6,325,375


Less Interest Earnings1 (20,549)


Rounding 175


Size of Issue 6,305,000


Notes:
1 Interest on project funds is calculated at 4.00% for 1 months.







Projected Impact of Proposed Projects


Less Abatements


YEAR YEAR Prin (4/1) Rate Interest Total YEAR
2022 1,286,313,900 7.28% 5,202,535    (1,636,982)     3,565,553    2022                                              3,565,553    2022
2023 1,499,453,200 16.57% 5,313,136    (1,334,462)     3,978,674    2023                                                                                                                                3,978,674    413,121       2023
2024 1,706,623,300 13.82% 5,040,202    (1,613,155)     3,427,047    2024 820,000      3.85% 210,385     1,030,385    (70,545)        (4,143)     (74,688)          955,697       4,382,744    404,070       2024
2025 1,740,755,766 2.00% 5,026,239    (1,592,171)     3,434,068    2025 205,000      3.85% 222,964     427,964       (74,372)        (74,372)          353,592       3,787,660    (595,084)     2025
2026 1,775,570,881 2.00% 4,825,255    (1,463,416)     3,361,839    2026 205,000      3.75% 215,174     420,174       (73,042)        (73,042)          347,132       3,708,971    (78,689)        2026
2027 1,811,082,299 2.00% 4,365,901    (1,419,427)     2,946,474    2027 255,000      3.65% 206,677     461,677       (71,747)        (71,747)          389,930       3,336,404    (372,567)     2027
2028 1,847,303,945 2.00% 3,273,328    (1,310,479)     1,962,848    2028 285,000      3.60% 196,893     481,893       (75,388)        (75,388)          406,505       2,369,353    (967,051)     2028
2029 1,884,250,024 2.00% 2,885,034    (1,111,099)     1,773,935    2029 285,000      3.65% 186,562     471,562       (73,938)        (73,938)          397,624       2,171,559    (197,795)     2029
2030 1,921,935,024 2.00% 1,931,351    (666,766)        1,264,585    2030 285,000      3.70% 176,088     461,088       (72,468)        (72,468)          388,620       1,653,205    (518,354)     2030
2031 1,960,373,725 2.00% 1,699,624    (566,594)        1,133,030    2031 295,000      3.75% 165,284     460,284       (75,884)        (75,884)          384,400       1,517,430    (135,775)     2031
2032 1,999,581,199 2.00% 1,375,154    (494,429)        880,725        2032 295,000      3.85% 154,074     449,074       (74,174)        (74,174)          374,900       1,255,625    (261,805)     2032
2033 2,039,572,823 2.00% 1,302,635    (492,661)        809,974        2033 295,000      3.85% 142,717     437,717       (72,442)        (72,442)          365,275       1,175,249    (80,377)        2033
2034 2,080,364,280 2.00% 1,299,091    (490,146)        808,945        2034 295,000      4.20% 130,843     425,843       (75,526)        (75,526)          350,317       1,159,262    (15,987)        2034
2035 2,121,971,565 2.00% 959,473       (152,596)        806,876        2035 295,000      4.20% 118,453     413,453       (73,426)        (73,426)          340,027       1,146,903    (12,359)        2035
2036 2,164,410,997 2.00% 954,454       (150,374)        804,080        2036 295,000      4.35% 105,842     400,842       (71,288)        (71,288)          329,554       1,133,634    (13,270)        2036
2037 2,207,699,217 2.00% 885,375       (85,400)          799,975        2037 305,000      4.35% 92,792       397,792       (74,004)        (74,004)          323,788       1,123,763    (9,871)          2037
2038 2,251,853,201 2.00% 881,725       (82,600)          799,125        2038 305,000      4.40% 79,448       384,448       (71,598)        (71,598)          312,850       1,111,975    (11,788)        2038
2039 2,296,890,265 2.00% 262,400       (79,800)          182,600        2039 310,000      4.40% 65,918       375,918       (74,068)        (74,068)          301,850       484,450       (627,525)     2039
2040 2,342,828,070 2.00% 253,200       (77,000)          176,200        2040 315,000      4.60% 51,853       366,853       (76,253)        (76,253)          290,600       466,800       (17,650)        2040
2041 2,389,684,632 2.00% 244,000       (74,200)          169,800        2041 320,000      4.60% 37,248       357,248       (78,148)        (78,148)          279,100       448,900       (17,900)        2041
2042 2,437,478,324 2.00% 239,700       (71,400)          168,300        2042 320,000      4.67% 22,416       342,416       (74,904)        (74,904)          267,512       435,812       (13,088)        2042
2043 2,486,227,891 2.00%                                                                     2043 320,000      4.67% 7,472         327,472       (71,635)        (71,635)          255,837       255,837       (179,975)     2043
2044 2,535,952,449 2.00%                                                                     2044                                                                                                                                                      (255,837)     2044
2045 2,586,671,498 2.00%                                                                     2045                                                                                                                                                                           2045


TOTALS 48,219,811 (14,965,158) 33,254,652 TOTALS 6,305,000 2,589,103 8,894,103 (1,474,850) (4,143) (1,478,993) 7,415,110 40,669,762 TOTALS


NOTES Rates based on AA Sale 8/14/23 + 0.35


Change 
in 


Value
Sewerage 


System 
Projects - Dated 11-16-23


$6,305,000 Funds on 
Hand


Net Debt 
Service Levy


Total 
Projected 


Debt Service 
Less 


Abatements


Existing Debt Payments Projected Debt Service


Equalized Value 
Projection


Total of All 
Obligations


Total 
Abatement 


Sources


Net Debt 
Service Levy


General Obligation Bonds, 2023
Levy Change


Total 
Abatements







Allocation of General Obligation Bonds, 2023 Page 1 of 2 


Issue Issue 1


Purpose


Amount
Dated
Payment Date


Year Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total
2023 0.00% -                   -                -                   
2024 715,000        3.85% 122,574        837,574        35,000          3.85% 35,545      70,545          20,000          3.85% 16,400          36,400          
2025 100,000        3.85% 126,363        226,363        35,000          3.85% 39,372      74,372          20,000          3.85% 18,028          38,028          
2026 100,000        3.75% 122,563        222,563        35,000          3.75% 38,042      73,042          20,000          3.75% 17,268          37,268          
2027 150,000        3.65% 117,950        267,950        35,000          3.65% 36,747      71,747          20,000          3.65% 16,528          36,528          
2028 170,000        3.60% 112,153        282,153        40,000          3.60% 35,388      75,388          20,000          3.60% 15,803          35,803          
2029 170,000        3.65% 105,990        275,990        40,000          3.65% 33,938      73,938          20,000          3.65% 15,078          35,078          
2030 170,000        3.70% 99,743          269,743        40,000          3.70% 32,468      72,468          20,000          3.70% 14,343          34,343          
2031 170,000        3.75% 93,410          263,410        45,000          3.75% 30,884      75,884          25,000          3.75% 13,504          38,504          
2032 170,000        3.85% 86,950          256,950        45,000          3.85% 29,174      74,174          25,000          3.85% 12,554          37,554          
2033 170,000        3.85% 80,405          250,405        45,000          3.85% 27,442      72,442          25,000          3.85% 11,591          36,591          
2034 170,000        4.20% 73,563          243,563        50,000          4.20% 25,526      75,526          25,000          4.20% 10,585          35,585          
2035 170,000        4.20% 66,423          236,423        50,000          4.20% 23,426      73,426          25,000          4.20% 9,535            34,535          
2036 170,000        4.35% 59,155          229,155        50,000          4.35% 21,288      71,288          25,000          4.35% 8,466            33,466          
2037 175,000        4.35% 51,651          226,651        55,000          4.35% 19,004      74,004          25,000          4.35% 7,379            32,379          
2038 175,000        4.40% 43,995          218,995        55,000          4.40% 16,598      71,598          25,000          4.40% 6,285            31,285          
2039 175,000        4.40% 36,295          211,295        60,000          4.40% 14,068      74,068          25,000          4.40% 5,185            30,185          
2040 175,000        4.60% 28,420          203,420        65,000          4.60% 11,253      76,253          25,000          4.60% 4,060            29,060          
2041 175,000        4.60% 20,370          195,370        70,000          4.60% 8,148        78,148          25,000          4.60% 2,910            27,910          
2042 175,000        4.67% 12,259          187,259        70,000          4.67% 4,904        74,904          25,000          4.67% 1,751            26,751          
2043 175,000        4.67% 4,086            179,086        70,000          4.67% 1,635        71,635          25,000          4.67% 584               25,584          


3,820,000$   1,464,316$   5,284,316$   990,000$      484,848$  1,474,848$   465,000$      207,833$      672,833$      


4/1 4/1 4/1


$3,820,000


11/16/2023


Sewerage System Projects - Stormwater Utility
$990,000


11/16/2023


Street Improvement Projects - Levy
$465,000


11/16/2023


Fire Department Equipment - Levy







 Page 2 of 2 


Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Interest Total Outstanding
-                -                   -                    -                   -                      6,305,000     


5,000            3.85% 1,544        6,544            45,000          3.85% 34,322          79,322          820,000        210,385        1,030,385       5,485,000     
5,000            3.85% 1,586        6,586            45,000          3.85% 37,616          82,616          205,000        222,964        427,964          5,280,000     
5,000            3.75% 1,396        6,396            45,000          3.75% 35,906          80,906          205,000        215,174        420,174          5,075,000     
5,000            3.65% 1,211        6,211            45,000          3.65% 34,241          79,241          255,000        206,677        461,677          4,820,000     
5,000            3.60% 1,030        6,030            50,000          3.60% 32,520          82,520          285,000        196,893        481,893          4,535,000     
5,000            3.65% 849           5,849            50,000          3.65% 30,708          80,708          285,000        186,562        471,562          4,250,000     
5,000            3.70% 665           5,665            50,000          3.70% 28,870          78,870          285,000        176,088        461,088          3,965,000     
5,000            3.75% 479           5,479            50,000          3.75% 27,008          77,008          295,000        165,284        460,284          3,670,000     
5,000            3.85% 289           5,289            50,000          3.85% 25,108          75,108          295,000        154,074        449,074          3,375,000     
5,000            3.85% 96             5,096            50,000          3.85% 23,183          73,183          295,000        142,717        437,717          3,080,000     


4.20% -                                     50,000          4.20% 21,170          71,170          295,000        130,843        425,843          2,785,000     
4.20% -                                     50,000          4.20% 19,070          69,070          295,000        118,453        413,453          2,490,000     
4.35% -                                     50,000          4.35% 16,933          66,933          295,000        105,842        400,842          2,195,000     
4.35% -                                     50,000          4.35% 14,758          64,758          305,000        92,792          397,792          1,890,000     
4.40% -                                     50,000          4.40% 12,570          62,570          305,000        79,448          384,448          1,585,000     
4.40% -                                     50,000          4.40% 10,370          60,370          310,000        65,918          375,918          1,275,000     
4.60% -                                     50,000          4.60% 8,120            58,120          315,000        51,853          366,853          960,000        
4.60% -                                     50,000          4.60% 5,820            55,820          320,000        37,248          357,248          640,000        
4.67% -                                     50,000          4.67% 3,503            53,503          320,000        22,416          342,416          320,000        
4.67% -                                     50,000          4.67% 1,168            51,168          320,000        7,472            327,472          -                   


50,000$        9,146$      59,146$        980,000$      422,961$      1,402,961$   6,305,000$   2,589,103$   8,894,103$     


4/1 4/1


11/16/2023 11/16/2023


Library Projects - Levy Park Projects - Levy TOTAL 
$50,000 $980,000







Debt Limit Calculation - 3 Year CIP


46.78% 44.19%
56.70%


63.52%


$0


$10,000


$20,000


$30,000


$40,000


$50,000


$60,000


$70,000


$80,000


$90,000


$100,000


Th
ou


sa
nd


s


City Policy = 80%


Statutory Debt Limit (5% of EV) City Approved Debt Limit Principal Outstanding








Meetings of: 


Date//Time: 
Location: 


COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Tuesday, August 22, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick, Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher 
and Christina Wozniak Scanlon 


CALL TO ORDER Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 


Roll Call Deputy Clerk Nimmo called the roll, there were 12 alders present.  


Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
Mayor Swadley noted the meeting had been properly noticed. 


3. Public Comment Period: 
No public comments. 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
Planning Director Scheel gave updates of road construction projects.  


5. Consent Agenda: 
A. Council Minutes – August 8, 2023 
B. Committee Minutes and Reports: Finance (07/25/2023); RDA (06/12/2023); CIP 


(09/29/2022); PSC (07/26/2023); Housing Authority (04/25/2023); Landmarks 
(07/13/2023); Plan Commission (07/10/2023); Library Board (07/19/2023; CIP 
(08/10/2023) 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion carried 12-0 


OLD BUSINESS 


6. 


NEW BUSINESS 


7.  R-128-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for closure of Fund 412 Equipment Replacement (Finance Committee 
recommended approval 7-0 on 08/08/2023) Director Ehrlinger explained this is to consolidate funds  


Motion by Schumacher, 2nd by Reeves to adopt budget for closure of Fund 412 Equipment Replacement. Motion carries 
12-0 


8.  R-129-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for closure of Fund 411 Building Maintenance (Finance Committee 
considering on 08/22/2023)      TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


Motion by Schumacher, 2nd by Hirsch to adopt budget for closure of Fund 411 Building Maintenance.  Motion carries 12-0 


 


  


  


 


 







 9.  R-130-2023 Repeal of city policy for scheduled building maintenance fund (Finance Committee considering on 
08/22/2023)         TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


Motion by Schumacher, 2nd by Reeves to repeal the city policy for scheduled building maintenance fund. Motion 
carries 12-0. Alder Ligocki asked  her vote be reconsidered.  Motion by Ligocki, 2nd Payton to postpone R130 to the 
next council meeting  Motion failed 0-12.  Motion to eliminate policy and take up at next council meeting.   


10. R-131-2023 Amend city policy regarding funding for vested sick leave payouts (Finance Committee considering on
08/22/2023)       TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


Motion by Schumacher, 2nd by Reeves to amend city policy regarding funding for vested sick leave payouts .  Motion
carries 12-0 


11. O-26-2023 Rezoning of Certified Survey Map, Lots 1, 2, 3 and Outlot 1 in the southeast corner of US 
Highway 51 and County Highway B (Stoughton Trailers Headquarters).   (Plan Commission recommends 
Council approval 7 – 0 on August 14, 2023)                             FIRST READING 
 
Introduced by Caravello Second reading 09/12/2023 


 


12. O-27-2023 Planned Development – General Development Plan for 211 S. Water Street.  (Plan Commission 
recommends Council approval 7 – 0 on August 14, 2023)   FIRST READING 
Introduced by Caravbello Second reading 09/12/2023 
 
13. O-28-2023 Rezoning of 2605 Cromwell Court and the rear portion of 2500 Jackson Street to MR-24 Multi-
Family Residential.  (Plan Commission recommends Council approval 7 – 0 on August 14, 2023)     
        FIRST READING   
Introduced by Caravello Second reading 09/12/2023 
 


14.  R-132-2023 Extra-territorial jurisdictional land division at 2355 Leslie Road – Town of 
Dunkirk.  (Plan Commission recommends Council approval on August 14, 2023   7 – 0) 


Motion by Caravello, 2nd Majewski for Extra territorial jurisidictional land division at 2355 Leslie 
Road- Town of Dunkirk.  Motion carries 12-0 


15. R-133-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with
Poblocki Paving Corporation of West Allis for the Veterans Road Storm Sewer Replacement Project –
Contract 6-2023 (Finance Committee considering on 08/22/2023)  TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


Motion by Schumacher, 2nd Jenson authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an
agreement with Poblocki Paving Corporation of West Allis for Veterans Road Storm Serwer Replacement
Project.  Motion carries 12-0 


16. O-29-2023 Amending Ordinance O-25-2023 to correct the Ward designation of recently annexed
territory         FIRST READING 


Motion by Jenson, 2nd Caravello to waive First Reading amending ordinance O-25-2023 Motion 
by Jenson, 2nd by Schroerlucke Second reading amending ordinance O-25-2023 to correct ward 
designation. Motion carries 12-0 
 
ADJOURNMENT Motion by Jenson, 2nd Schroerlucke Adjourned 8:10 motion carries 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
Tammy Nimmo 
 Deputy Clerk 


 


 


 








 


 


Public Works Committee  
Thursday, July 20th, 2023 
(Virtual Meeting) 
 
Members Present: Tom Majewski, Kay Rashka, Lisa Reeves, Ben Heili, Jordan Tilleson & Mayor 
Tim Swadley  


Absent/Excused: Public Works Director Brett Hebert  


Staff:  Planning Director Rodney Scheel & Public Works Office Manager Jen Wagner 
 
Guests:  
 
Call to Order:  Rashka called the meeting to order at 6:02 PM 


 


1) Communications:    


 Mayor Swadley advised that he is hoping to have another Alder on board for next month’s 
meeting.  


 
2)    Approve June 15th, 2023 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Reeves to approve the minutes and 
seconded by Rashka. Motion carried 5-0.    


 


New Business:  


3) Review and Acceptance of Public Improvements – Parker Cole Addition: 
 


Director Scheel presented the letter to the Committee of the conditional acceptance of public 
improvements. He also advised for those that didn’t know that the Parker Cole additions is a small 
six lot at the south end of Page St. and this lot will consist of all duplex units. He suggested that the 
adoption outlined in the resolution go to Council.  


 


Motion by Reeves, to recommend to approve and go to council, seconded by Tilleson. Motion 
carried 5-0 


 


4) 2023 Street Construction Project Update: 
 


Director Scheel stated that everything is moving along good. Roby Rd is complete and open, the 
City funded project of Oak Opening and Deer Point Dr to connect 51 West along with bikes lanes is 
also complete and a great improvement. Curb and gutter still need to be done on Devonshire and 
needs to be done before schools starts; if it is not there could be penalties. Curb and gutter also still 
need to be done on Kensington Square. Otherwise, there is still resurfacing that needs to be done on 
Jackson to Silverado to 51 as well as Olson Ct.   


 


 


.  







 


 


  


6) Future Agenda Items: 


 


a) Discuss the Rental of City Property for Lease for Agricultural Planting and Harvesting 
b) Pedestrian Hill Surface Remediation 
c) CIP Budgets 
d) Discuss Tree care for city trees for years 1-3 to reduce mortality rates 


 


9) Adjourn: Motion by Reeves to adjourn, seconded by Rashka to adjourn the meeting at 
6:25pm. Motion carried 5-0 


 


Respectfully submitted by Jen Wagner 7/21/2023 







Minutes of the Food Pantry Board Meeting  August 16, 2023 


1.  The meeting was called to order at 4:03 by Mike Heger 


2. Attendance : Mike Heger, Sandy Fleming, Linda Lane, Val Macho, Diane Williams and Mayor Tim 


Swadley 


3. Approval of the minutes from the June 14th meeting – Move to approve by V Macho, Second by 


S Fleming  Approved 4-0 with L Lane abstaining due to absence at the prior meeting 


4. Review of pantry finance – There will be many challenges affecting our budget in the near 


future:  1) reduction of funding to TEFAP has seen a 50% decline in the free food available.        


2) Second Harvest has notified us that at years end they will no longer have free meat and 


yogurt as the Dane County grant subsidizing this will be ending. 3) inflation has affected the 


costs of food we purchase at Aldi and Pick and Save, 4) increased usage of the pantry in the past 


few months which we do not anticipate changing.   


5. Our current budget (through 7-20-23) shows expenses (food and vouchers) of $54,020; revenue 


(donations) of $37,795 for a deficit YTD of $17,124.  This does not yet account for the increased 


pantry usage or anticipated additional costs to purchase meat, etc.   


Also we looked at the huge increase in pantry usage.  (108 visits in February vs 193 in both June 


and July).  Assuming that everyone uses the vouchers, the cost of vouchers over the past 2 


months is about $9300 per month. If that would continue for a year the cost would be $111,000 


adding in Holiday and Thanksgiving vouchers this could be an additional $18,000 for a total cost 


of vouchers of nearly $130,000.  Linda pointed out that some clients may not use the full value 


or not use them at all.   Cost of food purchased food is estimated to be about $40,000 per year.    


Total expenses would be about $170,000. 


Donations for last year were $86,000.  Interest earned was $11,000 for total income of $97,000  


Thus, there are many disturbing trends we face. Yes, we have savings and can continue to 


supplement a manageable deficit but in order to ensure financial viability for the future we must 


make some changes to control costs now.  L Lane moved to eliminate vouchers for clients 


coming in a second time each month.  Starting Oct 1st clients receive vouchers only on their first 


monthly visit to the pantry. Seconded by V Macho.  All in favor 5-0 This should save about 


$21,000 annually. 


6. Mandatory Volunteer meeting will be held on Monday Sept 18 at 3pm.  Please plan on 


attending.  We will have the mandatory annual Civil Rights and Confidentiality discussions, 


explain new policy on allowing clients vouchers only 1 time each month, other issues and 


questions.  Volunteers should think about other questions and issues they would like to bring up 


at the meeting.  We will have some light snacks 


7. 501c3 update- Since our last meeting in June nothing has been done as we awaited answers to 


some legal issues. Linda and Mike will schedule a meeting with the City finance person to enlist 


his guidance on questions we have.  To remain part of Second Harvest the bills must be paid by 


a 501c3 – Thanks to the Stoughton Area Community Foundation for helping us for the past 10 


months.  Mayor Swadley provided contacts for assisting us. 


8. CAC will be holding listening meetings to gather input from all pantries regarding their planned 


elimination of delivery services of TEFAP food to all pantries beginning 1-1-2024.  All board 


members were urged to attend and explain how this will affect us.  A meeting time/date has not 


been scheduled.   Mike has spoken to the CAC (distributor of TEFAP foods) to express concerns 


over this.   







9. Second Harvest has notified us that the yogurt and all of the meat they have provided at no cost 


(due to a grant from Dane County) will end at the end of the year.  This will significantly raise 


our cost for meat.  As of now we very rarely purchase any meat. with only a few cases of ground 


beef during the past year.  All other meat has been free.  


10. The Second Harvest partnership agreement must be signed by the panty and the Stoughton 


Area Community Foundation.  Our arrangement to date with the Foundation was limited to 


about 1 year, and we will need to explain that we are working on getting a 501c3 for us.  Mike 


will meet with the Foundation to explain the delay in getting a permanent 501c3 to assist us. 


11. Pick and Save – we are picking up about 200 pounds or more of meat each Friday from Pick and 


Save.  This was the result of a meeting with managers at the store, Second Harvest and the 


pantry. (Mike attended).  Val will take charge of this.  Volunteers are encouraged to use meat 


from Pick and Save first and to give the larger packages to larger families.   


12. Deliveries - This service has been very popular and in order to accommodate everyone we are 


placing no new limits on deliveries.  Continue to schedule everyone needing delivery.  Mike and 


Patte K have agreed to serve all who need deliveries without limiting the number. 


13. Do not allow anyone to reserve an appointment more than 1 week in advance.   This has been a 


bit of a problem.   


14. The handbook is complete and a copy of the new version will be at the pantry soon. 


15. Sandy F moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:15.  Linda L seconded.  All in favor 


 























 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, March 6, 2023 @ 5:30 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom 
 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Mayor Swadley (ex-officio member), Director Gillingham 
Late but excused: Greg Jenson 
Via Zoom: Fred Hundt (Vice Chair), Brett Schumacher 
Also attending: Chief Ripp 
   
1. CALL TO ORDER:  


Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 5:44 pm.  
 
2. Approval of the minutes from the Thursday, January 19, 2023 and February 27, 2023 Personnel 


Meetings  
Motion to approve, Hundt, Schumacher second, Approved 3-0 


 
3.  Communications/Updates 


Director Gillingham gave the Committee members updates on: 
• DOT Randoms – New vendor (InCheck) and we were able to partner with Stoughton 


Hospital so that our employees can go there for testing. 
• Have worked out timesheet verification 19-02. 
• Corrected Police Holiday issue. 
• Notified all employees regarding ICI ability to take 30 days if they had elected a higher 


amount of days (60 or 90). 
• Organized supply room and cabinets. 
• City employees attended CVMIC Work Plan meeting. Three priorities for 2023: 


1. Signed all Leadership up for HR 101 back to basics. 
2. Reasonable Suspicion 
3. Anti-Harassment 


• HR starting DEI assessment with CVMIC 
• 1095’s were completed and government filing completed as well. 
• School Job Fair scheduled for 3/22. 
• Open Positions: 


1. Forestry Intern 
2. Troll Beach Lifeguards & Front Desk Staff 
3. LT Seasonal Park’s Maintenance 
4. PD Office Manager 
5. PW Long Term Park’s Seasonal Maintenance 
6. CSO 


• Terms: 
1. Andy Johnson 
2. Nathan Anfinson 


• Hired PT Custodian in the midst of onboarding. 
• Chad O’Neil accepted the Lieutenant position.  


 
4. Discussion and possible action regarding 2023 Fire Department Org chart  


Chief Ripp explained the hierarchy and the needs of the department. (See attached meeting 
documents.) There was some discussion regarding the organizational charts and duties. Chief 
Ripp stated that this will distribute the experience of the employees and volunteers more evenly 
between the companies within the fire department. He further stated that the org chart is strictly 







for rank purposes. There was some discussion regarding a City ordinance that limits the number 
of Captains and Volunteers the department can have.  
Motion to send recommendation to Public Safety for review of the ordinance, Schumacher 
Jenson, second. Approved 4-0 
 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding Fire Department Assistant Fire Chief position description  
Director Gillingham stated that there had never been a position description for this position. She 
stated that Ripp had used information from other position descriptions from the department and 
put together this position description. She also stated that there is no pay attached to the 
position because it is a Volunteer position. After some discussion, it was decided that convince 
or persuade should first be removed from the position description and then it would be 
approved. 
Motion to approve with change completed, Schumacher, Hundt second. Approved 4-0 
 


6. Discussion and possible action regarding Fire Department Captain description  
Director Gillingham stated that this position was much the same language as the Assistant Fire 
Chiefs. She also stated that there is no pay attached to the position because it is a Volunteer 
position. There was some discussion regarding the requirements for the position as it pertains to 
driving fire trucks. Chief Ripp stated that although the department is exempt from its drivers 
obtaining CDL’s (Commercial Driver’s License), they are required to follow the guidelines for CDL 
holders. Chair Reeves asked that the same language be removed from this position description 
as the last. 
Motion to approve with the changes above completed, Hundt, Schumacher second, Approved 
4-0 
 


6:25 pm: At this point, Vice-Chair Hundt stated he needed to leave for another meeting. 


 
7. Discussion and possible action regarding Public Works Office Manager position description 


Director Gillingham stated that Wagner had an offer for another position. She stated that she 
and Director Hebert had met to discuss what to do and Hebert stated Wagner had pretty much 
been doing the duties of Office Manager. Mayor Swadley stated that Director Gillingham and 
he met with the Finance Director for funding. Mayor Swadley also stated the funds were 
available to fund the raise in pay as well. Director Gillingham stated the only thing left was for 
the position description to be approved. There was some discussion regarding the duties listed. 
Motion to approve, Schumacher, Jenson second. Approved 3-0 
 


8. Discussion and possible action regarding Public Works Athletic Facilities Superintendent position 
description 
Director Gillingham stated that this position had already been approved in the budget. She 
stated that the position is in charge of the facilities and fields. Parks Supervisor and Director 
Hebert had identified that there was a need for this position and that they had moved one of 
their existing employees into the position so it was filled internally. There was some discussion 
regarding any funds coming in for the use of the baseball diamonds, etc. 
Motion to approve, Jenson, Schumacher second. Approved 3-0 


 
 
 







9. Future Agenda Items 
Additions or changes to future agenda items written in red: 


• Leadership Backup Plan  
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff  
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation  
• Uniforms (added) 
• Updates to Work Rules (added) 


 
10. Motion to adjourn, Jenson, second Schumacher, Approved 3-0. Meeting adjourned 6:45 pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 3/7/2023 by HR Generalist Skarda 







 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 3, 2023 @ 5:30 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom 
 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Brett Schumacher (Vice-Chair), Tom Majewski, Mayor Swadley (ex-
officio member), Director Gillingham 
Missing Unexcused: Jonathan Schroerlucke 
Also attending: Tyler Denig 
   
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  


Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 5:37 pm.  
 
2. Election of Chair – Director Gillingham to ask for nominations  


Director Gillingham called for nominations for Chair. Majewski nominated Reeves. Director 
Gillingham asked for other nominations three times. Reeves accepted. Motion to approve 
Majewski, second Schumacher, Approved 3-0 
 


3. Election of Vice-Chair – Newly elected Chair to ask for nominations  
Chair Reeves called for nominations for Vice-Chair. Majewski nominated Schumacher. Chair 
Reeves asked for other nominations three times. Schumacher accepted. Motion to approve 
Majewski, second Reeves, Approved 3-0 
 


4. Discussion regarding future meetings regarding day and time 
There was some discussion. The decision was made to stay with the first Monday of each month but 
return to 6 pm for the start time. 
 


5. Approval of the minutes from the Monday, March 6, 2023 Personnel Meeting minutes 
Motion to approve, Schumacher, Reeves second, Approved 3-0 


 
6.  Communications/Updates 


Director Gillingham gave the Committee members updates on: 
• Open Records requests 
• WC (Workman’s Comp) Report) was completed by Generalist Skarda and they had 


uploaded to the CVMIC website. 
• Interviews – PFC interviews conducted and certified three candidates. Offers made to 


two candidates, both accepted other offers. Third candidate notified us of that they 
accepted another position. Director Gillingham stated she is trying to come up with a 
better way to streamline the process of hiring Police Officers as the process takes too long 
and we will continue to lose viable candidates. 


• Generalist Skarda is working on new ads and advertising for the Fire Dept. to help with 
recruitment. 


• EMS is doing a great job with recruitment. 
• Hired Laura Trotter as the new Volunteer/Program Coordinator for the Senior Center. She 


will be an excellent fit with her skill set. 
• Hiring for Senior Center Administrative Assistant. We are working on the position 


description.  
• Hiiring Machine Operator. Interviews completed. Finalists participating in skills assessment 


next week. 
• Interviews for the Utilities Asset & Facilities Coordinator all day on 5/4/23. 







 
7. Discussion and possible action regarding Covid sick time coverage removal 


Director Gillingham stated that since Dane County was ending its COVID policy on May 11th, the 
City’s COVID Policy should as well. She thanked them for supporting the employees in this way 
through the COVID pandemic.  
Motion to end the City’s COVID Policy Schumacher, Majewski second. Approved 3-0 
 


8. Discussion and possible action regarding sick/vacation with leave of absence 
Discussion regarding the current policy and what other organizations are doing in regards to 
exhausting time off banks prior to time off without pay. 
Motion to move forward with the change to leave of absence policy to be reviewed by Personnel 
once written, Majewski, Schumacher second. Approved 3-0 
 


9. Discussion and possible action regarding July Personnel meeting 
Director Gillingham stated that the July meeting would fall on the 3rd, a day when many 
employees would likely be off and alders out of town, etc. and she suggested that the meeting 
be rescheduled to the next week. After some discussion, it was decided that the 17th of July 
would work. 


 
10. Future Agenda Items 


Additions or changes to future agenda items written in red: 
• Leadership Backup Plan  
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff  
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation  
• Uniforms (added) 
• Updates to Work Rules (added) 


 
11. Motion to adjourn, Schumacher, second Majewski, Approved 3-0. Meeting adjourned 6:35 pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 5/23/2023 by HR Generalist Skarda 







 
 
 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 5, 2023 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Brett Schumacher (Vice-Chair), Tom Majewski, Mayor Swadley (ex-
officio member), Director Gillingham 
Missing Unexcused: Jonathan Schroerlucke 
Also attending: Tyler Denig (excused himself when the meeting went into a closed session.) 
   
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  


Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm.  
 
2. Approval of the minutes from the Wednesday, May 3, 2023 Personnel Meeting minutes 


Motion to approve, Majewski, Schumacher second, Approved 3-0 
 
3.  Communications/Updates  


Director Gillingham gave the Committee members updates on: 
• Hiring Tim Reel to replace Grady as Utilities Asset & Facilities Supervisor. 
• Police Officer PFC Interviews tomorrow. 
• CSO John Basco hired and additional CSO’s to be hired and share hours. 
• New Parks Machine Operator Tye Michiels hired. 
• Laura Trotter hired as Senior Center Program & Volunteer Coordinator. 
• Marcia Standard was hired as Administrative Assistant. 
• Hired two Media Techs – Max and Stephen. 
• Dispatcher Tracie Bauer gave notice, will be recruiting for another Dispatcher. 
• Kristin Ott retired. 
• 19 new Recreation employees onboarded. 10 new and 9 returning. 
• Tobie hired as Softball Supervisor. 
• Brian Erickson retiring July 28th. Recruiting for position replacement. 
• Martin Briggs retiring December 31st. 
• Public Employee Appreciation Day HR coordinated – Mayor made rounds to all 


departments with cookies. 
• K9 comp adjusted for PJ Johnson. 


 
Moved to closed at 6:13 pm for personnel update regarding a personnel issue.  
Chair Reeves read the closed session statement: 


** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, 
compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental 
body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. 


Director Gillingham was tasked by Majewski with obtaining/writing a procedure for when a Director 
is not following through/the Director is not doing their job. 
Moved to open session 6:45 pm 
Motion to approve, Majewski, Schumacher second, Approved 3-0 


 
4. Discussion and possible action regarding drug screens for new employees  


It was decided to move this to the next Personnel meeting. 
 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding Library Children’s Services Assistant Position Description 
Discussion regarding the position description. 
Motion to send to Council for approval, Majewski, Schumacher second. Approved 3-0 







 
 
 


6. Discussion and possible action regarding Dispatcher Position Description 
Director Gillingham stated there was a small amount of wordsmithing done to the information HR 
was given for the position description. 
Motion to approve, Majewski, Schumacher second. Approved 3-0 


 
7. Future Agenda Items 


Additions or changes to future agenda items written in red: 
• Leadership Backup Plan  
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff  
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation  
• Uniforms : 
Some discussion regarding uniforms. Majewski tasked Director Gillingham with getting a 
draft ready to present at the next Personnel Meeting. 
• Updates to Work Rules  


 
8. Motion to adjourn, Majewski, Schumacher second. All in Favor 3-0. Meeting adjourned 6:55 pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 6/30/2023 by HR Generalist Skarda 





		01 PW Min July 20, 2023.pdf

		02 FP Board Minutes August 16.pdf

		03 CIP Committee minutes (signed) 08-17-2023.pdf

		04 Finance Committee minutes (signed) 08-08-2023.pdf

		05 PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 03-06-2023.pdf

		06 PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 05-03-2023.pdf

		07 PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 06-05-2023.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Outdoor Consumption Pe1mits 
for the period of September 12, 2023, to June 30, 2024 


Committee Action: 


Fiscal Impact: 


Public Safety Committee recommended aeeroval 6-0 on 08/23/2023 


None 


File Number: R-134-2023 I Date Introduced: September 12, 2023


WHEREAS the City Clerk's office has received application for a Outdoor Consumption Pe1mit for 
the period of September 12, 2023, to June 30, 2024, for the business: 


Working Title LLC, Patti Cross, Agent, dba Water Street Tavern, 324 S Water Street 


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on August 23, 2023 to consider the tenns of the 
Outdoor Consumption Pe1mit application and, upon advisement from the Police 
Chief, recommenos approval; now therefore 


BE IT RESOLv.ED b.v the Coinrnon CQuncil of the City of Stoughton. that the. propei· city 
oflicial(sJ be fiereoy autnonzed anct ctll'ectect to issue flie Outdoor Const11npt10n Penmts to tne 


Council Action: D Adopted


Mayoral Action: D Accept


Tim Swadley, Mayor 


□


□ 


Failed


Veto


Date 


Council Action: D Override


Vote 


Vote 



















McFadden & Company
380 West Washington Ave


Madison, Wisconsin 53703
608.251.1350


james@mcfadden.com


New 6' Fence 6" from P.L.


New 6' Fence
4' Fence


Existing Brick Pavers
New
Brick
Pavers


New 8' Fence


Cooler Kitchen


Storage


Seating


HVAC


Dumpster


Dog's Allowed


Cooler
Freezer


Proposed Site Plan-Spring 2023 @ 1" = 10'
324 South Water St, Stoughton, WI


February 22, 2023













